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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
John Deere Financial India Private Limited

Report.on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We: have audited the financial statements of Johin Déere Financial iiidia Private Limited ("the Company’),

which. comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the Staterment of Profit and Loss {including:
othercomprehensive income), Statement of Cha nges.inEquityand Statement of Cash Flows for the year

then ended, ahd notes to'the financial statements, including a summary of the significant.accounting.
policies and other explanatory information.

Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations. given'to us, the.
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {“Act”) in the
manner so requiredand give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company'as at 31 March 2020, and profit and .other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the yearended onthat date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) spemﬂed under section
143(10) of the ‘Act, Our résponsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are-independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the. ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial stateéments
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilied our otfier ethical
responsibilities in accordarnce with'these requirements and the Cade of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient-and appropriaté to provide a basis forour.opinien on'the financial
statements.
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B S R & Associates LLP

John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Independent Auditor’sReport—31 March 2020 (continued)

Emphasis of matter

Asdescribed.in Note 26,16 to the financial statements, the extent to which the COVID-19 pandémic.
‘will impact the Company’s financial performance is‘dependent on future developments, which are
‘highly uncertain: _

Qur opinion is not modified in-respect of the above matter.

Otherinformation

The Company’s mia nagement and Board of Directors areresponsible for the other information. The.
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s.annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and cur auditor’s report therzaon,

Qur opinion onthe financial statements does not cover the othier information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so; consider whether the-other information s materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement -of this othérinformation; we are required to r:epqr't. that fact. We have -nothing to
report in this-regard..

Management's: arid Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect tc the preparation of these financial statements that ghea
true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and cther comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cashflows: of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles genérally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards {ind AS} specified under section 133 of
the: Act. This FESpGﬂSIbIl!’Ey also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding.ofthe assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection-and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequaté ‘inteérnal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring-accuracy and completeness.of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation-of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due tofraud or error,

In preparing-the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable; matters
relatedtogoing concernand using the going concern basisof accounting unlessthe Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to tease operations; or has no realistic alternative but to
doso.

The Boardof Directors is also responisible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
e _ _ 1cJa) .
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
independent Auditor's Report~31 March 2020 (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Financial Statements

Our objectives aretoobtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements asa whole
are free from material misstatement, whether duetofraud or error, and to issue an audltor’s report
thatincludes-cur epinion. Reasonableassuranceisa high level of assurance, but is not a- guarantee
that an-audit conducted in accordance with SAswil always detécta material misstatement when it
exists. Migstatements can arise fromfraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in

‘the aggregate, they could reasonably be expectedto influence the economic decisions of users taken;

on the basis.of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statemints, whether due
to fraud orerror, design and perform aud'it._p_ro'cedu_rg_s-r.espons'ijv.e tothose risks, and obtain audit
evidence thatis sufficient and appropriaté to provide a basis. for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a fiaterial misstatement résulting from fraud is hlgherthan for one resulting from error,
as fraud-may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations; or the override
of internal control.

« Obtain ‘an ‘understanding of internal control relevant to the atdit in order to design audit
procedufes thatare appropriatein the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to finanicial statements ih place.and the operating effectiveness
of suchcontrols.

« Evaludte the appropriateness of accouinting policies used and the reasonableness-of accounting
estimates and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management arid
Board of Directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management ard Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accountlng and, based on the audit evidénce obtained, whether .a materi
uncertainty exists related to .events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ablllty to continue ‘as a going concern. If we conclude that a material. uncertamty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial s'tat'ements or, ifsuch disclosuresare inédequate,-tqmodify ouropinion, Our-conclusions
are basedon the'audit evidence obtained up to the date of ourauditcr's report. However, future
events or conditions mayca use the Company to cease to continue asa going concern.

» Evaluate theoverall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achievesfair présentation.

We communicate to with those charged with governance _regard'ing_', among. other matters, the
planhed scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

o
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B S R & Associates LLP

John Deere Financial India Private Limited
!_n_dependent Auditor'sReport—31 March 2020 {continued)

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe_Fi_na_ncial_'S'tate__ments {continued)

We also providé those charged with governance with '@ statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements .regarding independence, and to communicate with thém :all
refationships and other matter_s,t_hat_- may reasonably be thought o bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Repoiton Other Legal a'n‘d_ReguIétory'Req uirements’

1.

As. required by the Companies {Auditors Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order") issued by the
Central Government in terms of section 142 {11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a

st

atement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent

applicable,

(A) As reguired by Section 143(3) of the Act; we report that:

a)

b)

c)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to-the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary forthe purposes of our audit.

I'nour opinion, proper baoks of account as required by law.have been kept by the Company
sofarasit a_ppea'rs'from our examination of those books.

The Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement withthe bgoks of account,

In our-opipion, tha aforesaidfinancial statements complywifh the.Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations recejved frem the directors as on 31 March
2020 taken on rétord by the Boa'rd.of_D'ife'c't'or"s, none of the directors is disq'uaiifi_e'd as on
31 March 2020 from being appointed-as a director in terms of Sectich 164(2) of the Act.

With respect tothe adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements-ofthe Company and-the operating effectiveness of such contrels, refer to.our.
separateRepartin “Annexure B”.

(B} With respect to'the other matters tobe included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and tothe best of
our information and accordingto:the explanations given to us:

i, The.Company hasdisclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2020 on
its financial position in its-financial statements - Refer Note 26,01 to the financial
statements;
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Independent Auditor’'s Report=31 March 2020 {continved)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements {continued)

i, The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law er accounting
standards, for matérial foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts- Refer Note 11tothe financial statemerits;

iii. There'were no amounts which were required to be transferredto the Investar Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;.

iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings: as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the pericd from 8 November 20161030 Decembeér2016 have
not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertaintothe financial year
ended 31 March2020.

{C) With respectto the'mattertobeincluded in the-Auditor’s Reportunder section 197(16):
In oUr cpinion and according tothe information and explanations given to us, the provisions of

:Se_ct'i_o_n 197 read with Schedule V of the ‘Act are not applicable to.the Company as it is-a ‘private
limited company’.

For B SR & Associates LLP
Chartered-Accountants.
Firm's Registration No, 116231W/W - 100024

u&»%ff”')’}/

. AnantMarwah
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date:25June 2020 viembership No. 510549

UDIN: 20510549AAAAFI5358
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Independent Auditor’sReport~31 March 2020 {continued)

AnnexureAto the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements

With reference to the Annexure A referredtoparagraph 1 of Report-on'Cther Legaland Regulatory
Requirenients of the Independent Auditor’s Report to the meinbers.of the Company on the financial

vi.

statements forthe year ended 31 March 2020, we report that:

{8) The Company has maintained proper recerds showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b} The Company has a program of verification to cover ali the items of the fixed assets at
interval of two years; which in our opihion, is reasonable having regard to the size of ‘the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, all fixed assets were
physwa!ly vetified by the management during the year. Accordlng to the mformatlon and
explanation given to us, no'material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c} According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of eur
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not hold any immoiable
propertiesinthe name of the Company. Thus, paragraph3{i) (c} of the Orderis not applicable
tothe Company.

The Company is a non-banking. financial company engagedin lending activities. Accordingly

it does not hold any physicalinventories. Thus, paragraph3(ii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company. ' '

According to the information and explanations given ta us, the Company has not grarted

any loans, secuted or unsecuredto companies, firms, mited liability partnerships or other

parties.covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Thus, pa ragraph
3(iti) ‘of the Order is not applicable to the Company:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation givento us, the Company
has not-advanced anyloans, given any guarantee or provided any securityin conpection with
loans to any of its directors or to any person in whom the di'ﬁector'is interested. Thus,
provisians of Section 185 arenot applicable to.the Company: Pursuant toprovisions.of sub

section 11 of section 186 of the Act, the Company is exempted from provisions of Section

186 of the Act, with respect to the loans given,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits from the public to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bankof India and
the provisions of section73 to section 76 or any otherrelevant provisions of the Act'and the
rules framedthere under apply.

The Central Government has not prescribéd the maintenanceé of cost records under Section
148 (1) of the Act, for any services rendered by the Company. Thus, paragra ph 3{vi) of the
Order is not appllca ble to the Company.

%/y
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report—31 March 2020 {continued)

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements{continued)

vil.

vii.

Xi.

(a) According to the i'n_fo_rm'ét'i_on' and explanations given 10 us and: on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued in the bagks of
account in respect.of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income Tax,
Goeds -and Services Tax and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities . As explained
to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Employees’ State Insurance and
Cess, Duty of Customs.and Duty of Excise.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of Provident Fund, Income Tax, Goods and Services Tax and other material
statutory dues were in.arrears.as at 31 Maich 2020 for a period of more than six months
fromi the date they became payable.

{b} According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of incore
tax, salestax, service tax, value added tax, duty of custom, Goods and Services Tax and duty
of excise that have not been deposited on account of dispute except for dues of service tax
as disclosed bejow:

Name of statute

Nature of the
Dues

Amount {INR)

Perigd to which
the aimaunt
relatis.

Forum where the
dispute'is pending

Finance  Act
1994

Service tax on
late interest and

4,257,423

2015-2017

Assistant
Commissioner,

non - sufficient’ Central GST, Pune

funding charges

In our opinion and according to the informationand explanations given tous, the Company
has not defaulted in‘the repaynient of foans or borrowingsto financial institutions, banks or
debenture holders. The Company did not have any outstanding loans or borrowings from
Government during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation givento us, the Company
has utilized the moriey raised by way of term loans during the year for the purpose for which
they were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no-fraud by the Company or on
the Company by its officers.or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

The Company s a ‘private limited company’ and therefore the provisions of Section 197 read
with-schedule V tothe Act are not applicable te the Company. Accordingly, paragraph3{xi}
of the order is not applicable to the Company. '
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Indépendent Auditor’sReport~31 March 2020 {continued)

Annexure A to the Independent:Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements {continued)

i,

Xiit.

Xiv.

Xy,

xvi,

In our epinfon and.according to information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company as per the Act. Thus, paragraph 3{xii} of the Order isnot. applicable to
the.Company.

The Company is a ‘private limited company’ and therefore the provisions of section 177 of
the Act.are not applicable to the Company. According 1o the in'f'orr'n"a'ti_on and explanations.
given to us and on the basis of cur examination of the records of the Company, the

transactions with related parties are.in compliance with section 188 of the Act and the

details, as required by the applicable accounting standards have been disclosed in the
financial statemerits,

According to information and explanations given to.us-and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has made a-preferential allotment of shares during:
the vear. Further the Compa hy has comiplied with therequirements of section 62 of the Act
and the amounts raised have been used for the purpose for which the funds were raised.

‘The Company has not made- any private placement of shares or fully or pa rtially convertible.

debentures during the year.

According to information and explanations given tous and based on our éxamination-of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered.into any non-cash transactions with

directors orpersons connected with-him. Thus, paragraph.3(xv) of the Order is notapplicable:

to the Company.

“The Company is required.to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934 and it has obtained certificate of registration dated 6 September 2012.

For B $R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 11623 1W/W-100024

\b\:r"% %Mw

Anant Marwah

Place: New Delhi Partner
Date; 25 June 2020 Mé&mbership ne.: 510548

UDIN: 20510545AAAAFI5358
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the
Financial Statements of John Deere Financial India Private Limited

Report on the Intemal Financial Controls undeérclause (i) of sub — section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 {“Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (A) (f) under ‘Report on 'Othe'r-Le__gal and Regulatory Requirements
section ofourreport ofevendate)

Opinion

We have audited internal financia! controls with re’fe_r.ence:t_o financial statements of John Deere
Financial India Private Limited (“the Com‘pany’-‘) a5 0f 31 March 2020 in Conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Conipany for the yearended onthat date.

In our opinign, the Company has, in all material respects; an adeguate. internal financial control
system with réference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively asat 31 March 2020, based on the internal control with reference to financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the ésseéntial components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit -of the Internal Financial Control Over Financial Reporting (the:
“Guidance Note”)issued bythe Institute’if Chartered Accountant of [ndia (“ICATY).

Emphasis of matter

As-déscribed in Emphasis of Matter paragraph of our report to the financial statements; the-extent
to which the COVID-19 pandemic will have an impact on the Company’s interna! finaricial controls
with reference to the finantial statements is-dependent on future developments, which are highly
uncertain,

Cur opinion is not modified in respect.of this matter.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Finaricial Control

The Company's management:and Board of Directorsare responmblefor establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to fmanmal statemeris
criteriaestablished by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in Guidance Note, These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenaiice of
adeguate internal financial controls with reference to fnanmal statements that were operating
effectively for- ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its- business, including adherenca to-
Company’s policies, the safeguarding ofits assets, the prevention and detection of fra uds and errors,
the acturacy and completeness of accounting records, andthe timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as.required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditar’s Responsibility

Our résponsibility is t6 express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit: in accordanice with
the Guidance Noteand the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
sectiofi 143 (10} of the '

BTy e
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Auditor's Responsibility {continued)

Act, to the extent applicable to an audit: of internal financia! coitrols with reference to financial
‘statements. Those Standards and Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan.and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls withreference tofinancial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the ddequacy of the
internal financial control ‘system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Ouraudit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statementsincluded
obtam:ng an understandlng of such internal financial controls, assiessing the risk that'a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating, eﬁectaveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected deperid on the auditor’s Judgment,
including the assessment ofthe risks of material misstatement ofthe firancial statements, whether
due to fraud or erroft.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinicn on the Company's internal financial control ‘with- referencé to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controlwith referenceto Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is-a process desigied
to provide reasonahle assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and.the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accerdance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A. Company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes.
-those palicies and procedures that {1) pertain to maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the ‘Company; {2)
provide reasonableassurance that transactions are recorded as necessaryto permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with.génerally accepted accounting principles, and that receipis
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance régarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisitionl, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets thatcould have a materialeffect on the financial statements.

anD.—~
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Inherent Limitation of Ihternal Firiancial Control with referenceto Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal finahcial controls with reference to financial
statements, -including the possibility of collusion or impreper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected, Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods-are subject to the risk that the financial control with reference to financial statements may
become ina dequatﬁé_ be'éau_se of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compii'a:nce with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Foi B5R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountonts
Firm Registration Number: 116231 W/W-100024

AT

AnantMarwah

PlaceiNew DElhi Partner
Date: 25 June 2020 Membership no.: 510549

UDIN: 20510549AAAAFI5358



John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020

Rs. in Lakhs|
Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
A ASSETS
1 |Financial Assets
{a) Cash and cash equivalents 4 8,024.42 7,629.05 1,749.11
(b} Bank balance other than {a} above 5 0.59 0.61 0.57
{c) Receivables- Trade receivabl 6 266.44 189.30 99,23
(d) Loans 7 233,045.48 167,609.22 117,851.73
(e} Other financial assets 8 66.62 37.83 35.11
Total Financial assets 241,403.55 175,466.01 119,735.75
2 |Non-financial Assets
(a) Current tax {net) - 415.16 234,71 3243
(b} Deferred tax assets (net) 26.11 2,111.36 1,327.11 1,028.71
{c) FProperty, Plant and Equipment 9 (a) 186.20 132.76 91.98
{d) Capital work-in-progress - 36.72 1.35 211
(e} Right of Use Assets 9 (b} 260.05 = i
(f] Other non financial assets 10 711.12 347.55 197.67
Total Non-financial assets 3,720.61 2,043.48 1,352.90
Total Assets| 245,124.16 177,509.49 121,088.65
B LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
1 |Financial liabilities
(a) Derivative financial Instrument 1 154.45 - -
(b} Payables 12
(i) Trade payables
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and - 0.01 1.08 3.00
small enterprises
-total out ding dues of s other than - 1,143.59 998.10 575.39
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(c) Debt securities 13 109,119.70 80,622.98 -
(d) Berrowings {Other than Debt securities) 14 85,507.50 54,744.95 87,561.92
(e} Lease liabilities - 270.98 = -
(f} Other financial liabilities 15 467.28 505.57 372.12
Total Financial liabilities 196,663.91 136,872.68 88,512.43
2 |Non-financial liabilities
{2) Current tax liabilities (net) - - 4.24 152
(b) Provisions 16 554.11 454.57 306.50
(e} Other Non financial liabilities 17 98.95 73.76 48.16
Total Non financial liabilities 653.06 532.57 356.18
3|EQUITY
{a) Equity Share capital 18 39,390.00 34,350.00 29,390.00
(b) Other Equity 19 8,417.19 5,714.24 2,830.04
Total Equity| 47,807.19 40,104.24 32,220.04
Total Liabilities and Equity 245,124.16 177,509.49 121,088.65
Significant accounting policies 2
Notes to the financial statements 1-26.46

As per our report of even date attached

For B 5 R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 116231W/W-100024

p»=

Anant Marwah

Partner

Membership No, 510549

uoin 205 0SHAARARFI 53253
Place : New Delhi

Date : 25 TUME 215

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
John Deere Financial India Private Limited

CIN: UB5923PN2011PTC141149

Company Secretary

Place : Pune

Date : :2-5‘ J\;NL: 2026

Girish Sivaramakrishnan
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Pune
Date :

25 JUNE 202¢C




John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020

Rs. in Lakhs
: For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Note No.
b 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
| |Revenue from operations 20
(a) Interest income 32,065.00 23,050.24
(b} Other operating income 208.97 145.77
Total Revenue from operations 32,277.97 23,196.01
Il |Otherincome 21 816.22 282.53
Il |Total Income (1+11) 33,094.19 23,478.54
IV |Expenses
(a) Finance cost 22 14,397.14 10,222.89
(b) Net loss on fair value changes on financial instruments 26.14 154,45 -
{c) Impairment on financial instruments 23 3,923.99 1,490.11
(d) Employee benefits expense 24 4,196.06 3,262.05
(e) Depreciation and amortization expense 9 205.12 58.25
(f) Other expenses 25 6,827.46 4,387.36
V |Total expenses 29,704.22 19,420.66
VI |Profit before tax (Il - V) 3,389,97 4,057.88
Vil |Tax expense:
Current tax 26.11 1,641.00 1,434.21
Deferred tax 26.11 (784.25) (298.40)
Vil |Profit for the year (VI - VII) 2,533.22 2,922.07
IX |Other comprehensive income
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement of Defined benefit liability/(asset) 26.04 6.32 (53.43)
(ii)income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 26.11 {1.59) 15.56
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 4.73 (37.87)
X |Total Comprehensive Income (VIII +1X) 2,537.95 2,884.20
XI |Earnings per equity share {of Rs.10 each)
Basic and Diluted (Amount in Rs.) 26.08 0.73 0.99
Significant accounting policies 2
Notes to the financial statements 1-26.46

As per our report of even date attached

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 116231W/W-100024

Anant Marwah

Partner

Membership No. 510549
UDIN 205105HGRRRATF

Place : New Delhi
pate: 25 JUNE 2028

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
John Deere Financial India Private Limited
CIN: UB5923PN2011PTC141149

Mom
naging Director
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2020

Rs. in Lakhs
particilie For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
I. Operating Activities
Profit before tax 3,389.97 4,057.88
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 205.13 58.25
Interest Income on loans (32,065.00) (23,050.24)
Interest Income on fixed deposits (41.72) (33.98)
Finance cost 14,422.47 10,222.89
Insurance claim received (1.89) (0.70)
{Profit) / loss on sale of assets 1.13 1.55
Unrealized forex loss on borrowings 65.60 -
Unrealized forex loss on trade payables 16.60 -
Unrealized forex loss on derivative instrument 154.45 (11.05)
Impairment on financial instruments 3,923.99 1,490.11
(9,933.27) (7,265.29)
Cash inflow from interest on loans 30,671.06 21,700.99
Cash outflow towards finance cost {14,195.06) {9,323.12)
Cash Generated from Operation before working capital changes 6,538.73 5,112.58
Working capital changes
Adjustments for :
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans (64,038.31) (48,408.24)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial Assets (28.79) 3,904.36
(Increase) / Decrease in Non-Financial Assets (383.57) (145.88)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables (77.15) (20.06)
Increase [ (Decrease) in Provision (3,813.14) {1,372.90)
Increase [ (Decrease} in Trade and Other payables 127.83 431.82
Increase [/ (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (38.29) 133.45
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Non- Financial Liabilities 25.18 25.60
(61,672.50) (40,420.28)
Taxes paid (1,827.28) (1,633.76)
Net Cash used in Operating activities (A} (63,499.78) (42,054.04)
Il Investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets {166.70) {99.82)
Insurance claim received 1.89 0.70
Interest received 41.75 (3,873.14)
Net cash used in Investing activities (B) (123.06) (3,972.26)
Ill. Financing activities
Proceeds from Issue of share capital 5,000.00 5,000.00
Proceeds from Securities premium 165.00 -
Proceeds from Borrowings (other than debt securities) 155,249.85 157,676.99
Proceeds from Debt Securities 58,476.13 169,686.24
Repayment of Borrowings {other than debt securities) (124,730.00) (190,456.99)
Repayment of Debt Securities (30,000.00) (90,000.00)
Proceeds from Inter corporate deposits 77,000.00 73,976.99
Repayment of Inter corporate deposits (77,000.00) (73,976.99)
Repayment of lease liabilities (142.76) -
Net cash generated from Financing activities (C) 64,018.21 51,906.24
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C) 39537 5,879.94
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 7,629.05 1,749.11
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year* 8,024.42 7,629.05
Notes:
* Comprises:
{a) Remittance in transit (Refer note 4) 22.18 4.29
(b} Balances with bank (Refer note 4)
(i} in current accounts 8,002.24 7.624.76
8,024.42 7,629.05
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for year ended 31 March 2020

a. Equity share capital
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Rs.
Balance at April 1, 2018 29,390.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year 5,000.00
Balance at March 31, 2019 34,390.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year 5,000.00
Balance at March 31, 2020 39,390.00
b. Other equity
Rs. in Lakhs
Reserves and Surplus Items of OCI Total other
Particulars Securities Statutory Retained Remeasurement equity
Premium Reserve earnings of net defined
benefit plans
Balance at April 1, 2018 - 777.04 2,053.00 - 2,830.04
Profit for the year - - 2,922.07 - 2,922.07
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the
pr / (loss) ) - - (37.87) (37.87)
year, net of income tax
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year - B 2,922.07 (37.87) 2,884.20
Transfer to Statutory Reserve - 447.91 (447.91) - 2
Balance at March 31, 2019 - 1,224.95 4,527.16 (37.87) 5,714.24
Profit for the year - - 2,533.22 - 2,533.22
Other comprehensive income for the year, net
of income tax - - = 4.73 4.73
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2,533.22 4.73 2,537.95
Premium on issue of Equity Shares 165.00 - - - 165.00
Transfer to Statutory Reserves - 508.00 (508.00) = -
Balance at March 31, 2020 165.00 1,732.95 6,552.38 {33.14) 8,417.19
* The Statutory reserve under 45 IC are based on the profit computed under the previous GAAP as of 31st March 2019 and 1st
April 2018
For BS R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants John Deere Financial India Private Limited
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

1.

2.

Corporate Information

John Deere Financial India Private Limited (the Company) was incorporated on 21 October 2011.
The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as a Non-deposit taking Non-
Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC’) as defined under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
(RBI) Act, 1934, holding a Certificate of Registration from the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI") dated
6 September, 2012.

The principal business of the Company is providing finance for the purchase of farm equipment
manufactured, sold and traded by John Deere India Private Limited and for the construction
equipment manufactured and sold by Wirtgen India Private Limited.

John Deere Financial India Private Limited has become a Systemically Important Non- Deposit
taking Non-Banking Financial Company with effect from June 2016, vide Master Direction DNBR.
PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 01 September 2016 updated as on 17 February 2020 issued by
the Reserve Bank of India (RBI).

The registered office of the Company is located at Tower 14, Magarpatta City, Hadapsar, Pune
India.

Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Statement of compliance and basis for preparation and presentation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as
amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India and other relevant provisions of the Act.
Any application guidance/ clarifications/ directions issued by RBI or other regulators are
implemented as and when they are issued/ applicable.

Up to the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company prepared its financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India
(“Indian GAAP”) under the historical cost convention as a going concern and on accrual basis,
unless otherwise stated, and in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read
with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 (as amended), prudential norms for income
recognition, assets classification and provisioning for non-performing assets as well as
contingency provision for standard assets as prescribed by The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for
NBFCs.

These are the Company’s first financial statement prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (‘Ind AS’) financial statements. The company has adopted Ind AS from April 1, 2019
with effective transition date as April 1, 2018 (transition date). Refer note 3 for the details of first-
time adoption exemptions availed by the Company. An explanation of how the transition to Ind
AS has affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows
of the Company is provided in Note no 3.
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.2

23

2.4

Basis for measurement of financial statements:

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
assets and liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) that are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date-

Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of changes in Equity are prepared
and presented in the format prescribed in the Division Ill of Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the
requirements of Ind AS. Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in
Lakh.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with IND AS, requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
(including contingent liability) at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the year. Management believes that the estimates used in
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ
due to these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revision to accounting estimates and the difference between actual results are recognized in the
periods in which the estimate is revised, or the results are known/materialize.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation that have most significant effect
on amounts recognized in the financial statements are given below:

i Note 2.5 — Fair value measurement

i, Note 2.9 — impairment of financial instruments based on expected credit losses
iii. Note 2.15 - measurement of assets and obligations for defined benefit plans

iv. Note 2.19 - recognition of deferred tax assets

V. Note 2.20 — measurement of provision and contingencies

Vi. Note 26.01 - Disclosure of contingent liabilities




John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.5 Measurement of Fair Values

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level
1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

i. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

ii. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

iii. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

2.6 Revenue Recognition

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate (EIR)
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. The calculation of the EIR
includes all fees paid or received that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of a financial asset.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit
impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortized cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any
expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is
calculated by applying the EIR to the amortized cost of the credit-impaired financial assets {i.e. at
the amortized cost of the financial asset after adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance
(ECLs). The Company assesses the collectability of the interest on credit impaired assets at each
reporting date. Based on the outcome of such assessment, the Interest income accrued on credit
impaired financial assets are either accounted for as income or written off as per the write off
policy of the Company.

Management fees income are the charges for the services provided during the year on cost plus
mark up as per the service agreement.

2.7 Finance Cost

Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest rate on
respective financial instruments measured at Amortized cost. Financial instruments include bank
term loans, non-convertible debentures, commercial papers, exchange differences arising from
foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.
Finance costs are charged to the Statement of profit and loss.




John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.8 Leases:

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of
Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant
judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable
discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together
with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the
Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option.

According to ITFG issued by ICAI, where lease agreement can be extended by lessee only with
the consent of lessor, the lessee does not have the right to use the asset beyond the non-
cancellable period. Based on which the Company restricts lease term to Agreement period and
cannot extend it further to reasonably certain period for which there is no agreement as of
now.

A contractis, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period in exchange for consideration.

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from
non-lease components of the contract.

Transition to Ind AS 116

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment
Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 leases,
and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-
balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees.

Three transition approaches specified under Ind AS 116;

i; Full Retrospective Approach

ii. Modified retrospective approach

iii. Modified retrospective approach II

The Company has adopted the modified retrospective approach, ROU Asset & liability have
calculated from 1 April 2019 onwards and value of opening ROU Assets & liability is same under
this approach.




John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.8 Leases (continued)

Company as a lessee
Operating leases

For transition, the Company has elected to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to all leases. The
Company has also used the practical expedient provided by the standard when applying Ind AS
116 to leases previously classified as operating leases under Ind AS 17 and therefore we have done
re-assessment for all leases which are live as on 1st April 2019.

On transition, the Company recognized a right to use asset for all leases which are live as on 1st
April 2019 and if any leases added newly during the year we have considered as additional ROU
asset during the year. Lease liability measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments. The right-of-use asset is recognized at its carrying amount as if the standard had been
applied for remaining period of the lease. ROU assets recognized of INR 353.34 Lakhs and a
corresponding lease liability of INR 353.34 Lakhs has been recognized. The lease payments for
operating leases as per Ind AS 17 - Leases, were earlier reported under cash flow from operating
activities.

On application of Ind AS 116, the nature of expenses has changed from lease rent in previous
periods to depreciation cost for the right-to-use asset, and finance cost for interest accrued on
lease liability.

2.9 Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the Company’s balance sheet on
settlement date when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Recognized financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs and revenues that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial Liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs and revenues directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit or
Loss.

If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Company will account for
such difference as follows:

i If fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets,
then the difference is recognized in profit or loss on initial recognition (i.e. day 1 profit or
loss);

ii. In all other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to bring it in line with the transaction
price (i.e. day 1 profit or loss will be deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount
of the asset or liability).




John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.9 Financial Instruments (continued)

After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be released to profit or loss on a rational
basis, only to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market
participants would consider when pricing the asset or liability.

Financial assets

Classification
On initial recognition, depending on the Company’s business model for managing the financial
assets and its contractual cash flow characteristics, a financial asset is classified as measured at;

i. Amortized cost;
ii. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); or
iii. Fair value through profit and loss {(FVTPL).

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial asset is recognized on trade date initially at cost of acquisition net of transaction cost
and income that is attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Cost equates the fair value
on acquisition. Financial asset measured at amortized cost and Financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income is presented at gross carrying value in the Financial
statements.

Assessment of Business model

The Company is required to classify financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of
both:

i. The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
ii. The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

An assessment of the applicable business model for managing financial assets was carried out for
the classification of a financial asset. The Company is primarily in the business of providing retail
loans to its end customers. The business model assessment is performed at a higher level of
aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

i, business model objective is to hold financial assets in arder to collect contractual cash
flows and

ii. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount.

As the Company is in the business of retail loans the financial asset gives rise on cash flows that
are solely payments of interest and principal. The Company’s business model refers to how the
Company manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, the business model




John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.9

Financial Instruments (continued)

determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial
assets or both.

Financial asset at amortized cost

Amortized cost of financial asset is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR (Effective Interest Rates). For the
purpose of SPPI (Solely payment of Principal and Interest) test, principal is the fair value of the
financial asset at initial recognition. That principal amount may change over the life of the financial
asset (e.g. if there are repayments of principal). Contractual cash flows that do not introduce
exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows on account of changes such as equity
prices or commodity prices and are related to a basic lending arrangement, do give rise to SPPI.
An originated or an acquired financial asset can be a basic lending arrangement irrespective of
whether it is a loan in its legal form. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the
profit and loss statement. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit and loss
statement.

Accordingly, the Company measures bank balances, loans, trade receivables and other financial
instruments at amortized cost.

The ‘amortized cost’ of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus
or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any
expected credit loss allowance.

Unamortized transaction cost and incomes and impairment allowance on Financial asset is
included in the under the head “Loans”. The ‘gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the
amortized cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.

Financial asset at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

After initial measurement, basis assessment of the business model as "Contractual cash flows of
Asset collected through hold and sell model and SPPI", such financial assets are classified to be
measured at FVOCI. Contractual cash flows that do introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the
contractual cash flows due to changes such as equity prices or commodity prices and are
unrelated to a basic lending arrangement, do not give rise to SPPI.

The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit and loss statement. The losses
arising from impairment are recognized in the profit and loss statement. The carrying value of the
financial asset is fair valued by discounting the contractual cash flows over contractual tenure
basis the internal rate of return of a new similar asset originated in the month of reporting and
such unrealized gain/loss is recorded in other comprehensive income (OCI). Where such a similar
product is not originated in the month of reporting, the closest product origination is used as a
proxy. Upon sale of the financial asset, actual the gain/loss realized is recorded in the profit and




John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.9

Financial Instruments (continued)

loss statement and the unrealized/gain losses recorded in OCI are recycled to the statement of
profit and loss.

Financial asset at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for categorization at amortized cost or FVOCI, is
classified as at FVTPL. In addition, the Company may elect to classify a financial asset, which
otherwise meets amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as FVTPL. However, such election is allowed
only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch’). Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair
value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclassifications within classes of financial assets

A change in the business model would lead to a prospective re-classification of the financial asset
and accordingly the measurement principles applicable to the new classification will be applied.
During the current financial year and previous accounting period there was no change in the
business model under which the Company holds financial assets and therefore no reclassifications
were made.

Impairment of Financial Asset

Impairment Approach

In accordance with Ind AS 109, an entity shall recognize a loss allowance for expected credit losses
on a financial asset that is measured for a contract asset or a loan commitment and a financial
guarantee contract to which the impairment requirements apply.

An entity shall measure the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased

significantly since initial recognition.

Where the credit risk has not increased significantly, the Company shall measure the loss
allowance equal to 12- month expected credit losses.

Adoption of ECL

John Deere Financial has adopted expected credit losses on its portfolio based on the forward-
looking information and historical data for all its financial assets.

The measurement of ECL is calculated using three main components:
i Probability of default (PD)

ii. Loss given default (LGD) and

iii. Exposure at default (EAD).

The stage defined by the Company are as given below
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2.9 Financial Instruments (continued)

i. Stage 1: 0-29 days
ii. Stage 2: 30-89 days
iii. Stage 3: 90 days and above

The measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date based
on historical experience, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The
measurement of ECL involves increased complexity and judgement, including estimation of PDs,
LGD, a range of unbiased future economic scenarios, estimation of expected lives, and estimation
of EAD and assessing significant increases in credit risk.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk:

The credit risk on a financial asset of the Company are assumed to have increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due. Accordingly,
the financial assets shall be classified as Stage 2, based on the quantitative as well as qualitative
factors. This analysis includes the identification and calibration of relationships between changes
in default rates and changes in key macro-economic factors.

Key macro-economic indicators include but is not limited to;
i. Food output

ii. Rainfall

iii. Lending interest rate

Techniques for determining LGD:

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Company estimates LGD
parameters based on the history of recovery rates against defaulted counterparties. The LGD
models consider the cash flow received, assets received in lieu of settlement of loan and collateral
available for subsequent recovery that is integral to the financial asset.

As Company has observed challenges in the resolution of defaulted accounts with aging more
than one year and accordingly a higher LGD estimate is applied assuming nil recoveries towards
such accounts where recovery is not made over a period of time.

The Company has in recently entered into the business of financing of Road Construction
equipment and hence there is limited historical data available to determine the quality of
portfolio. Reasonable estimates will be applied to determine the provisioning for the road
construction portfolio on case to case basis. Currently the Company is applying the provisioning
percentage considering the total portfolio including agriculture and road construction.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for trading or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are




John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

2.9

2.10

211

2.12

Financial Instruments (continued)

recognized in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in
Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. If the Company enters
into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet but retains either all
or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are
not derecognized.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation in respect of the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying value of the financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments, primarily foreign exchange forward
contracts, to manage its borrowing exposure to foreign exchange. Derivatives are initially
recognized at fair value at the date the contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain/loss is
recognized in Statement of profit and loss.

Repossessed assets

In the normal course of business, the Company repossess assets in its loan portfolio to settle
outstanding debt and does not change ownership title. Any surplus funds are returned to the
customers/ obligors. As a result of this practice, the assets / properties under legal repossession
processes are not separately recorded on the balance sheet.

Write offs

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when there is no realistic prospect of
further recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor/
borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognized in Statement of profit and
loss.
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2.13 Property, plant and equipment and Other intangible assets:

Property, plant and equipment

Tangible

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated
depreciation/amortization less accumulated impairment, if any. The cost of fixed assets
comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other
taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly
attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, and interest on
borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset is ready
for its intended use.

Capital Work-in-progress:

Capital work-in-progress for production, supply of administrative purposes is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment loss, if any, until construction and installation are complete, and the
asset is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation and Amortization:

Depreciation is recognized (other than on capital work-in-progress) on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of assets. Depreciation on assets acquired/ purchased, sold/discarded
during the year is provided on a pro-rata basis from the date of each addition till the date of
sale/retirement. The estimated useful lives of assets are stated below:

Particulars Useful Life
(in years)

Furniture and Fixtures 8

Computer and Networking Equipment 3=5

*Estimated useful life of assets consistent with the useful life specified in the Schedule II
of the Companies Act, 2013.

Fixed assets individually costing Rs. 10,000 or less depreciated fully in the year of acquisition
except tablets.

The economic useful lives of assets are assessed based on a technical evaluation, taking into
account the nature of assets, the estimated usage of assets, the operating conditions of the assets,
past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, maintenance history, etc. The
estimated useful life is reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with effect of any change in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Where the cost of part of the asset is significant to the total cost of the assets and the useful life
of that part is different from the useful of the remaining asset, useful life of that significant part
is determined separately. Depreciation of such significant part, if any, is based on the useful life
of that part.
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2.13  Property, plant and equipment and Other intangible assets:
Impairment of fixed assets

At the end of each year, the management reviews the carrying values of assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine the extent, if any,
of the impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of individual
asset, the management estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Intangible assets are also tested for impairment every financial year even if
there is no indication that the asset is impaired.

If the recoverable amount of an asset of cash generating unit is estimated to be less than the
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or the cash generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset of cash
generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of a recoverable amount, not exceeding the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset or cash generating unit in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of assets

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment, determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognized in
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognized as at April 1, 2018 (transition date) measured as per
the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost as of the transition date.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and unencumbered, highly liquid bank and
other balances (with original maturity of three months or less) that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.15 Employee Benefits:

Short-term Employee Benefits:

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries in
the period in which the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefit
that is expected to be paid in exchange for that service.
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2.15

Employee Benefits:

Other long-term employee benefits

The liability for earned leave is not expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related services. They are therefore
measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit
method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. The benefits
are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in Statement of
profit and loss.

Share based payment transactions

Cash settled share based payments: The fair value of the amount payable to employees in
respect of Stock Options and Stock Appreciation Rights (SARS) which are settled in cash, is
recognized as an expense with a corresponding increase in liabilities, over the period that the
employees unconditionally become entitled to the payment. The liability is re-measured at
each reporting date and at settlement date based on the fair value of the stock. Any changes
in the fair value of the liability are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Post-employment benefits

i Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when
the employees have rendered the service entitling them to the contribution.

Provident fund: The employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of
provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make
monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The
contributions as specified under the law are made to the provident fund and pension fund
administered by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The Company recognizes such
contributions as an expense when incurred.

ii. Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporting period. Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect
of changes to asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest),
is recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained
earnings and is not reclassified to Statement of profit and loss. Past service cost is recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period of plan amendment.
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2.15 Employee Benefits (contined)

2.16

2.17

Defined benefit costs comprising service cost (including current and past service cost and gains
and losses on curtailments and settlements) and net interest expense or income is recognized
in Statement of profit and loss.

The defined benefit obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or
surplus in the Company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is
limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

Gratuity:

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering
eligible employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount
equivalent to 15/26 days salary payable for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs
upon completion of five years of service. The Company makes annual contributions to gratuity
fund established as trust. The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable
in future based on an independent actuarial valuation carried out at each Balance Sheet date
using the projected unit credit method.

Foreign currencies transactions:

Transactions in currencies other than the Company's functional currency are recognized at the
exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the closing
exchange rate prevailing as at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the date
of initial recognition (in case measured at historical cost) or at the rate prevailing at the date
when the fair value is determined (in case measured at fair value). Foreign exchange
differences are recognized in Statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise
except for exchange difference on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under
construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest cost on those foreign currency borrowings.

Operating Segments

The Managing Director of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (CODM) as defined by the IND AS 108, "Operating Segment". Operating segments are
reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company.

The primary business of the Company is financing of retail loans to end customers for purchase
of equipment manufactured by its parent Company. This forms the major part of the income
and business performed by the Company. The Company also provides services to its overseas
units; however, it is not of significant value.
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2.18

2.19

Earnings per share:

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) in accordance with Ind AS 36
"Earnings per Share". Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net profit and loss attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent entity by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit and loss
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent entity by weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares (except where the results are anti-dilutive).

Taxation:

Income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred tax. The
Company elected to exercise the option permitted under Section 115BAA on the Income-tax
Act, 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act, 2019. Accordingly, the
Company has recognized Provision for Income tax for the year ended March 31, 2020 and
remeasured its deferred tax assets /liabilities basis the rate prescribed in the said section.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit before tax as reported in the Statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The current tax is calculated using the tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the Balance Sheet
after offsetting advance tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction
and where the relevant tax paying units intends to settle the asset and liability on net basis.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the standalone financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profits. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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2.19 Taxation (continued)

2.20

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realized, based on tax taxes (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilitieson a

net basis.

Current tax and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, it's carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made where there is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that arises from the past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made.
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2.21 Standards issued but not yet effective:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from 01 April 2020.

3 First time adoption of Ind AS — Mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions:

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs with effect from 1st April 2019, with a transition date of 1st April 2018. The
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 are the first financial statements, the
Company has prepared under Ind AS. For all periods up to and including the year ended
31March 2019, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with the
accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together
with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (‘Previous GAAP’).

The adoption of Ind AS has been carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption
of Indian Accounting Standards. Ind AS 101 requires that all Ind AS standards and
interpretations that are issued and effective for the first Ind AS financial statements be applied
retrospectively and consistently for all financial years presented. Accordingly, the Company
has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS for the year ended March 31,
2019 and the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2018, the date of transition to Ind AS
and also as at March 31, 2019.

The adjustments made by the Company in restating its financial statements prepared under
previous GAAP, including the statement of profit and loss account for the year ended March
31, 2020 and the Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2018 and as at March 31, 2019 is explained in
Note 3.

In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, the Company has availed certain exemptions
and exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101, which are stated below. The resulting difference
between the carrying values of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements as at the
transition date under Ind AS and Previous GAAP have been recognized directly in equity
(retained earnings or another appropriate category of equity).

De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company has applied the de-recognition requirements of financial assets and financial
liabilities prospectively for transactions occurring on or after April 1, 2018 (the transition date).

Classification of debt instruments
The Company has determined that classification of debt instruments in terms of whether they

meet the amortized cost criteria or the fair value through profit or loss criteria based on facts
and circumstances that existed as of the transition date.
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3

First time adoption of Ind AS — Mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions (continued)
Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its plant and equipment
and intangible assets recognized as of April 1, 2018 (transition date) measured as per the
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively;
however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial
instruments were initially recognized in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition
date. Further, the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information when
determining, at the date of transition to Ind AS, whether there has been significant increase in
credit risk since the initial recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101.
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3 Explanation to Transition of Ind AS
Reconciliations between Previous GAAP and Ind AS

A. Equity reconciliation

Rs in Lakhs
— As at March 31, As at April 1,
2019 2018

Equity as reported under Previous GAAP 38,064.18 30,824.61
Adjusted for reduction:

Discounting of non-current security deposit {0.25) (0.06)
Adjusted for addition:

Impairment all on Financial Instr measured at Amortised cost 2,148.17 1,368.97
Income accrued on Stage ||| assets 786.91 599.83
Deferred tax adjustment (894.77) (573.31)
Equity under Ind AS 40,104.24 32,220.04

B,  Total Comprehensive income reconciliation
Rs in Lakhs
As at March 31,

Particulars 2019

Net profit as reported under Previous GAAP 2,239.57
Add:

Impairment allowance on Fi ial Instr d at Amortised cost 779.20
R srrement of the defined benefit obligation 5343
Deferred tax adj it {321.44)
Income accrued on Stage |l assets 187.08
Income tax relating to r surement of the defined benefit obligati {15.56)
Discounting for security deposit given (0.22)
Net Profit under Ind AS 2,922.07
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Remeasurement of the defined benefit obligation (53.43)
Income tax relating to r of the defined benefit oblig; 15.56
Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS 2,884.20
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l C.  Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019
Rsin Lakhs

[Amount as per Amount as per

I Particulars Note o Transition Adjustments [
| ASSETS
I Financial Assets
(i) Cash and cash equival 7,629.05 - 7,629.05
(ii} Bank balance other than (a} above 0.61 - 0.61
|| (ili} Receivables- Trade receivabl 189.30 - 189.30
| {iv) Loans | &ii 164,674.14 2,935.08 167,609.22
' {v) Other financial assets i 43.30 (5.47) 37.83
Total financial assets 172,536.40 2,929.61 175,466.01

Non-fi jal Assets

[i) Current tax (Net) 234.71 - 234.71
{ii) Deferred tax assets (net) wi 2,221.89 (894.77) 1,327.11
{iil} Property, Plant and Equipment 132.76 - 132.76
{iv} Capital work-in-progress 1.35 - 1.35
| (v} Other Non financial assets iv 342.33 5.22 347.55
i Total Nen-financial assets 2,933.03 (889.55) 2,043.48
Total Assets 175,469.43 2,040.06 177,509.49
[
!
I Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Note fma'u 95 par Transition Adjustments Ame Tt g gt
P GAAP* IND AS
i LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
1 Liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Derivative financial Instrument - - -
(ii} Payables = - -
(a) Trade payables - - =
- Dues of Micro Small and dium Enterprises 1.08 = 1.08
- Dues to other than Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 998.10 - 998.10
{iii} Debt securities 80,622.98 - 80,622.38
{iv) Borrowings (Other than Debt securities) 54,744.95 - 54,744.95
{v] Other fi ial liabiliti 505.57 = 505.57
Total Fil ial liabilities 136,872.68 - 136,872.68
Non-financial liabilities
(i) Current tax liabilites (Net) 4.24 - 4.24
(i) Provisions 454.57 - 454,57
{iii) Other Non financial liabilities 73.76 - 73.76
Total Non financial liabilities 532.57 - 532.57
EQUITY
(i) Equity Share capital 34,390.00 = 34,390.00
{ii) Other Equity 3,674.18 2,040.06 5,714.24
Total Equity 38,064.18 2,040.06 40,104.24
Total Equity and Liabilities 175,469.43 2,040.06 177,509.49
* Previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to IND AS p i qui for the purpose of this note
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{ D.  Reconciliation of Balance sheet as at April 1, 2018

Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Note Ama.unt 2SPEr | yransition Adjustments Aot Es pey
Previous GAAP * IND AS
[ ASSETS
!
Financial Assets
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 1,749.11 - 1,749.11
| |lii} Bank balance other than {a) above 0.57 0.57
(iii} Receivables- Trade receivables 99.23 - 99.23
{iv) Loans | &ii 115,882.92 1,968.81 117,851.73
(v) Other fi ial assets 1] 43.30 {8.18) 3511
Total financial assets 117,775.13 1,960.62 119,735.75
Non-financial Assets
| (i) Current tax {Net) 3243 - 32.43
| {ii) Deferred tax assets (net} vi 1,602.02 (573.31) 1,028.71
iii) Property, Plant and Equi 91.98 - 51.98
iv) Capital work-in-progress 2.11 - 211
I {v) Other Non financial assets iv 189.55 8.12 197.67
Total Non-financial assets 1,918.09 (565.19} 1,352.90
1 Total Assets 119,693.22 1,395.43 121,088.65
|
. Amount as per o Amount as per
Particulars Transition Adjustments
Note | previous GAaP * ! IND AS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
[ Financial liabilities
|(a} Derivative financial Instrument - - =
(b} Payables - B =
(i) Trade payables - = x
i - Dues of Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 3.00 - 3.00
! - Dues to other than Micro Small and Medium Enterprises 575.39 £ 575.39
| (c} Debt securities - . i
(d} Borrowings (Other than Debt securities) 87,561.92 - 87,561.92
{e) Other fi ial liabiliti 372.12 - 372.12
Total Financial liabilities 88,512.43 = 88,512.43
Non-financial liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilites (Net) 1.52 - 1.52
|{b) Provisions 306.50 - 306.50
{c) Other Non fi ial liabilities 48.16 = 48.16
Total Non financial liabilities 356.18 - 356.18
EQUITY
(2) Equity Share capital 29,390.00 - 29,390,00
’ |b) Other Equity 143461 1,395.43 2,830.04
| Total Equity 30,824.61 1,395.43 32,220.04
Total Equity and Liabilities 119,693.22 1,395.43 121,088.65
* Previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to f to IND AS p for the p of this note

-
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i E.  Reconciliation of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019 Rs in lakhs
Particulars Note AU R et Transition Adjustments AmMAURt s ger
| Previous GAAP * IND AS
{ Revenue from of lans
{a) Interest income i 22,863.16 187.08 23,050.24
{ {b) Other operating income 145.77 2 145.77
|
Total Revenue from operations 23,008.93 187.08 23,196.01
Other income iii 279.81 272 282,53
| Total | 23,288.74 189.80 23,478.54
(a) Employee benefits expense v 3,299.90 (37.85) 3,262.05
(b) Finance cost 10,222.89 = 10,222.89
{c) Depreciation and amortisation exp 58.25 = 58,25
| {d) Impairment on financial instruments i 2,269.31 (779.20} 1,490.11
{e) Other exg il 4,384.45 291 4,387.36
| Total expenses 20,234.80 (814.14) 19,420.66
1
| Profit before tax_(lll - V] 3,053.94 1,003.94 4,057.88
Tax expense:
Current tax 1,434.21 - 1,434.21
Deferred tax vi (619.84) 321.44 (298.40]
Profit for the year (V1 - VII) 2,239.57 682.50 2,922.07
Other comprehensive income
{A] Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a) R nent of Defined Benefit Liability/[Asset] v - {53.43) (53.43)
(blincome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss vi . 15.56 15.56
(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss * -
Total Comprehensive income (VIII + 1X) 2,239.57 644.63 2,884.20
* Previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to IND AS p ion requi for the purpose of this note

F. Notes

| i)  Impairment ce on Financial | ts at A d cost and trade receivables
| Under Previous GAAP, the provisioning on overdue loans was as per management estimates, subject to the minimum provision required as per Master Direction- Non Banking Financial Company -

Systematically Important Non Deposit taking Company and Deposit Taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. Under Ind AS, impairment allowance is calculated as per expected credit loss
method.

i} income using effecti thod
Under Previous GAAP, interest income on non performing assets (i.e. loans that are 90 days past due] was not accrued. Under Ind AS interest income on such |oans are recognised on their net carrying

amount.

iily  Security Deposits
Under the previous GAAP, interest-free lease security deposits (that are refundable in cash at the end of the lease term) are recognised as an asset at transaction value. Under Ind AS 109, all financial
assets are required to be recorded at fair value. Accordingly the Company has fair valued these security deposits under Ind AS. The difference in the fair value and the transaction value of the security
deposit has been recognized as a prepaid expenses. The prepaid expense is amortised over the period of the lease which is partially offset by the notional interest income recognized on the related
security deposits,

iv)  Prepaid Expenses
Under Ind AS, interest free leased deposits are fair valued and the difference between the fair value and the transaction value of the security deposit has been recognized as prepaid expenses .

| v) Re of defined benefit oblig
Under the previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses were recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Under Ind AS, the actuarial gains and losses form a part of re-measurement of the net defined
benefit liability / assets which is recognised in other comprehensive income.

vi)  Deferred tax
Effect of Deferred taxes recognised on the INDAS adjustments,

G) Cash flow Statement
There are no material reconciliation items to cash flow statements as reported in Previous GAAP financials.
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Note 4: Cash and cash equivalents

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
(a)Balances with banks in current accounts 8,002.24 7,624.76 1,745.75
(b) Remittance in transit 22.18 4.29 3.36
Total 8,024.42 7,629.05 1,749.11
Note 5: Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
(a) Deposit with bank for VAT purposes 0.59 0.61 0.57
Total 0.59 0.61 0.57
MNote 6 : Receivables - Trade Receivables
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
Receivables considered good - unsecured 266.44 189.30 99.23
Total 266.44 189.30 99.23
Note 7: Loans
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
Secured Term Loans at Amortized cost within India
Secured Term Loans to customers under Financing Activities 233,075.95 165,992.24 116,865.71
Interest accrued but not due on loans to customers 5,820.01 4,422.06 3,072.81
Total (Gross) 238,895.96 170,414.30 119,538.52
Less : Impairment loss allowance (Refer Note no.26.09) {5,850.48) (2,805.08) (2,086.79)
Total 233,045.48| 167,609.22 117,851.73)
* There are no loans outside India
Note 8: Other financial assets
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018

Security Deposits

66.62

37.83

35.11

Total

66.62

37.83

3513
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Note 9 (a): Property, plant and equipment

Rs. in Lakhs
Description Computers and Furniture and Fittings Total
Networking
Equipment
Cost
Balance as at April 1, 2018 (deemed cost) 90.95 1.03 91.98
Additions 79.70 20.88 100.58
Disposals 2.02 - 2.02
Balance as at March 31, 2019 168.63 21.51 190.54
Accumulated depreciation
Depreciation for the year 54.32 3.93 58.25
Eliminated on disposal of assets 0.47 - 0.47
Balance as at March 31, 2019 53.85 3.93 57.78
Net carrying amount as on March 31, 2019 114.78 17.98 132.76
Rs. in Lakhs
Description Computers and Furniture and Fittings Total
Networking
Equipment
Cost
Balance as at March 31, 2019 168.63 21.91 190.54
Additions 117.06 14.27 131.33
Disposals 3.08 - 3.08
Balance as at March 31, 2019 282.61 36.18 318.79
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2019 53.85 3.93 57.78
Depreciation for the year 70.29 6.47 76.76
Eliminated on disposal of assets 1.95 - 1.95
Balance as at March 31, 2020 122.19 10.40 132.59
Net carrying amount as on March 31, 2020 160.42 25.78 186.20
No! : Right of Use Asset
Rs. in Lakhs
Description Total
Cost
Balance as at April 1st, 2019 353.34
Additions 35.07
Disposals -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 388.41
Acc lated depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2019 o
Depreciation for the year 128.36
Eliminated on disposal of assets >
Balance as at March 31, 2020 128.36
Net carrying amount as on March 31, 2020 260.05
Note 10: Other non-financial assets-unsecured considered good
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

As at April 1, 2018

(a)Balances with Government authorities-

(i) GST credit receivable 269.45 98.06 40.09

(ii) GST refund on export services 82.20 68.93 24.65

(b) Prepaid expenses 71.41 66.20 88.58
(c) Advance to suppliers 182.21 44,27 5.81
(d) Employee advances 105.81 70.09 38.54
Total 711.12 347.55 197.67

Note:

No advances are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any advances are
due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
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Note 11 : Derivative financial Instrument

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1,2018
Foreign currency forward Contract not designated in hedge 154.45 - -
accounting relationship
{Refer note no. 26.14)
Total 154.45 - -
Note 12:Payables
Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
Trade Payable
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 0.01 1.08 3.00
small enterprises {Refer note no.26.10)
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than 1,143.59 998.10 575.39
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total 1,143.60 999.18 578.39
Note 13 : Debt Securities
Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

As at April 1, 2018

At amortized cost
Unsecured

{a) Privately placed non-convertible debentures 80,783.49 80,622.98 -
{b) Commercial papers 28,336.21 - -
Total (a+b) 109,119.70 80,622.98 =
Debt securities in India 108,119.70, 80,622.98 -
Debt securities outside India - - -
Total Debt securities 109,119.70 80,622.98 -
Particulars of Privately Placed Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures ("NCDs")
Description of NCDs Number of NCDs Rs. in Lakhs Redemption Date
As at March 31, 2020
9.45% Non Convertible Debentures (Privately Placed) 5,000 50,000 10-Jan-22
9.30% Non Convertible Debentures {Privately Placed) 3,000 30,000 25-Sep-20
As at March 31, 2019
9.45% Non Convertible Debentures (Privately Placed) 5,000 50,000 10-Jan-22
9.30% Non Convertible Debentures (Privately Placed) 3,000 30,000 25-Sep-20
Particulars of Commercial papers outstanding as on March 31, 2020
Description of CPs Number of CPs Rs. in Lakhs Redemption Date
Commercial papers 6,000 30,000 29-Jan-21
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Note 14: Borrowings (Other than debt securities)

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

As at April 1, 2018

At amortized cost
{a) Term loans

Unsecured Loans from banks 73,981.29 54,744.95 67,534.62
(b) Loans repayable on demand
Unsecured Loans from banks-working Capital Demand Loan 11,526.61 - 20,027.29

Total 85,507.90 54,744.95 87,561.92
Borrowings in India 72,680.24 54,744.95 87,561.92
Borrowings outside India 12,827.66 - -

Total 85,507.90 54,744.95 87,561.92
Term Loan Repayment

Rs. in Lakhs
Year of repayment
Particulars
FY-2022-23 FY-2021-22 FY-2020-21

Standard Chartered Bank
Term loan commencing from 23rd May 2017 (Note i and 31,500.00 4,550.00 4,100.00
ii)
The Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd., India ) - 2.900.00
Term loan commencing from 20th January 2016 (Note i) il
ICICI Bank loan commencing from 27th March 2017 (Note i) 3,700.00 6,300.00 7,900.00
HSBC loan commencing from 4th March 2020 (Note iii) 12,815.45 - -

i) Of the above, term loans of amount Rs. 29,450 lakhs are repayable in quarterly equal installments
ii) Term loans of amount Rs.31,500 lakhs are repayable in five monthly installments starting from 33rd month to the 37th month.

iii) Term loan of amount Rs.12,815.45 lakhs is repayable in one installment in FY 2022-23

iv) Working capital demand loan of Rs.11,500 lakhs is repayable on demand

v) Term loans interest rate ranges from 7.59% to 10.25%

Note 15 : Other financial liabilities Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
(a) Accrued employee cost 365.53 448.77 34581
(b) Payable to customers 101.75 56.80 26.31
Total 467.28 505.57 372.12
Note 16: Provisions Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
(a) Provision for compensated absence 518.59 396.13 291.59
{b) Provision for gratuity 35.52 58.44 14.91
(Refer note no. 26.04)
Total 554.11 454.57 306.50
Note 17 : Other Non financial Liabilities Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
(a) Statutory dues 98.95 73.76 48.16
Total 98.95 73.76 48.16
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Note 18 : Equity Share Capital

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31,2019 | As at April 1, 2018
Authorised:
800,000,000Equity shares of Rs. 10 (31 March 2019: 80,000.00 80,000.00 30,000.00
800,000,000 and 1 April 2018: 300,000,000)
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid:
393,900,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 fully paid-up (31 March 39,390.00 34,3590.00 29,390.00
2019: 343,900,000 and 1 April 2018: 293,500,000)
Total 39,390.00 34,390.00 25,390.00

Note

i. The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one

vote per share.

ii. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders.

iii. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Number of Shares Amount
Balance as on April 1, 2018 293,900,000 29,390.00
Add: Equity shares issued during the year 50,000,000 5,000.00
Balance as on March 31, 2019 343,900,000 34,390.00
Add: Equity shares issued during the year 50,000,000 5,000.00
Balance as on March 31, 2020 393,900,000 39,390.00

iv. Details of shares held by the holding company, the ultimate holding company, their subsidiaries and associates:

(Singapore) Pte Limited and the Holding Company)

. No of Equity Shares
Particula
TR with Voting rights
As at March 31, 2020
- held by John Deere Luxembourg Investment SARL (Subsidiary of Ultimate Holding -
Company)
- held by John Deere India Private Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of John Deere Asia
. 2 : 393,899,990
(Singapore) Pte Limited and the Holding Company)
As at March 31, 2019
- held by John Deere Holdings SARL (Subsidiary of Ultimate Holding Company) 10
- held by John Deere India Private Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of John Deere Asia 343 899990
{Singapore) Pte Limited and the Holding Company) e
As at April 1, 2018
- held by John Deere Holdings SARL (Subsidiary of Ultimate Holding Company) 10
- held by John Deere India Private Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of John Deere Asia
! s ( : Gl 293,899,990
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Note 18 : Equity Share Capital (continued)

v. Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Particulars Number of shares held AT Ir .
class of shares
As at March 31, 2020
John Deere India Private Limited (the Holding Company) 393,899,990 100.00
As at March 31, 2019
John Deere India Private Limited (the Holding Company) 343,899,990 100.00
As at April 1, 2018
John Deere India Private Limited (the Holding Company) 293,899,990 100.00
Rs. in Lakhs
As at March 31,
Particulars As at March 31,2020 | A% 3tMarch3l
2019
(a) Statutory Reserve u/s 45IC of RBI Act, 1934 1,732.95 1,224.95
(b) Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,527.16 2,053.00
Add: Profit for the year 2,533.22 2,922,07
Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve (508.00) (447.91)
Closing balance at the end of the year 6,552.38 4,527.16
(c JOther comprehensive income arising from remeasurement (33.14) (37.87)
of defined employee benefit plans
(net of deferred tax)
(d ) Securities Premium 165.00 -
Total 8,417.19 5,714.24
Nature and Purpose of Reserves :
Particulars Nature & Purpose of Reserves
Securities Premium Account Premium received upon issuance of equity shares

As prescribed by section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
every non-banking financial company shall create a reserve fund and
transfer therein a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit
Statutory Reserve every year as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and Loss and before
any dividend is declared. No appropriation of any sum from the reserve
fund shall be made by the non-banking financial company except for the
purpose as may be specified by the Reserve Bank of India

Retained earnings Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date.

Other Comprehensive Income Created on account of items measured through other comprehensive
income
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John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of the fi ial

Note 20: Revenue from operations

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Revenue from operations
{i} Interest income 32,069.00 23,050.24
{ii} Other operating inceme 208.97 145.77
Total 32,277.97 23,1596.01
Note 21 : Other income
Rs. in Lakhs
. For the year ended For the year ended
Fartiedlars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest on fixed deposits with bank 4172 33.98
Management fees income 769.52 240.82
Insurance claim received 1898 .70
Miscellaneous Income 3.09 7.03
Total B816.22 282.53
Note 22: Finance Cost
Rs. in Lakhs
. For the year ended For the year ended
Pt 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
At amortized cost
(i} Interest on borrowings from banks 5,046,30 6,693.54
(i} Interest on debt securities 7.674.86 953.08
{iii} Inter corporate deposit 391.65 59.40
{iv} Discounting charges on commercial paper 1,192.22 2,338.98
{v) Interest expenses on Lease liability 2532 -
{vi] Other issuance cost 66.79 177.89
Total 14,397.14 10,222.89
Note 23: Impairment on financial instruments
Rs. in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
Farticule 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
On Financial instruments measured at Amortized Cost
{Refer note no, 26.09)
Write off (net of recoveries) B78.59 771.82
Allowance for |oan losses 3,045.40 718.29
Total 3,923.99 1,490.11
Note 24: Employee benefits expense
Rs. in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
Patticulirs 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Salaries and wages 4,058.86 3,057.39
Contributions to provident and other funds 149,22 110.95
(Refer note no. 26.04)
Share Based Payments to employees (Refer note no. 26.13) [Net of reversal of excess [31.12) 2835
liability) "
Staff welfare expenses 19.10 65.46 |
Total 4,196.06 3,262.05
Note 25: Other expenses
Rs. in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
il 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Facility cost 20171 23141
Repairs and maintenance - others 223 5.96
Insurance 45.66 3463
Communication expenses 36.66 28.37
Travelling and conveyance £95.10 B843.21
Marketing expenses 18.50 349
Legal and professional 278.91 157.47
Outsourcing Cost 175.94 147.98
Payment to Auditors{Refer note no. 26.02 ) 17.56 8.09
Foreign exchange loss (net) 70.32 845
Fixed assets written off 1.04 1.55
Management fees expense 1,307.51 758.64
Contract labour expenses 1,055.75 789.93
Information system expenses 2,202.50 B79.68
Recruitment and training expenses 87.61 125.19
C5R Expenses(Refer note no. 26,12 ) 41,76 27.89
Bank charges B1.25 58.20
Printing and Stationery 67.60 32.29
Courier Services 63.40 53.32
Meeting expenses 90.73 B4.99
Document storage cost 22.69 15.10
Miscellanecus expenses 62.63 51.54
Total 6,827.46 4,387.36
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26.01 Contingent liabilities and Commitments :-

Contingent liabili Rs in lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 1-Apr-18
Consumer Redressal Matters® 1.00 1.00 3.00
Service Tax Matters - 7203 29.45
Total 1.00 73.03 32.45

*Company has received a notice from the District Consumer Redressal Forum in lieu of a case filed by a customer. Based on legal confirmation obtained, the management believes that all these
contingencies are possible cash outflows and not probable.

Commitments Rs in lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 1-Apr-18
Estimated amount of capital contracts to be executed on capital account and not provided for {net of advance) 34.53 3145 881
Lean to customer under financing activities 1,936.24 1,069.35 1,114.40
26.02 Payment to Auditors :
Rs in lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
As Audi
a) Statutory audit 13.00 5.00
b) Tax Audit 1.00 1.00
In other capacity -
Certification 0.50 1.25
For reimbursement of expenses 161 0.15
Total 16.11 7.40
*Excluding indirect tax
26.03 The year-end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as below:
Amount receivable/payable in foreign currency on account of the following:
Rs in lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20 1-Apr-18
Amount in
i argirar
original | Amountining | Amountin A in INR O Amountin INR
original currency currency
currency
Receivables
a) usp 361 271.94 1.29 £9.11 0.15 9.83
b) THB 22.10] 51.01 i8.78 40.93 2.26 473
Payables
a) usp 5.29 398.42 6.42 44450 1.27 8256
b) EURO 0.06 5.1 0.04 2.78 0.04 355
) AUD 0.44 20.31 - - - -

26.04 Employee benefits:

A Defined Contribution Plan
The Company makes provident fund contribution to a defined contribution plan administered by Regional Provident fund Commissioner. Under the scheme the Campany is required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to fund the benefits. The Company has recognized contribution to provident fund of Rs.137.20 lakhs in the Statement of Profit and Loss for
the year ended 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: Rs.99.43 lakhs). The contribution paid by the Company is in accordance with the rules framed by government from time to time.

B. Defined Benefit Plan

The Company makes contributions towards gratuity to fund defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. The plan provides for a lump sum pay

while in service or on termi 1 of employ of an juival

t to employees, at
1t to 15 days salary for every completed year of service or a part there of in excess of six months. Vesting occurs

upon completion of five years of continuous service. The scheme is administered by Kotak Life Insurance Limited and is funded based on demand received from the fund.

it, death
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Employee benefits (Continued)
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet and movement in the net defined benefit obligation for the year are as follows:

Rs in lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
i) Reconciliation of defined benefit obligati
Liability at the beginning of the year 340,72 224.65
Current Service Cost 54.66 i0.47
Interest cost 25.20 17.42
Demographic Gain/{Loss) on Plan Liabiliti 0.17 -
Financial Gain/{Loss) on Plan Liabilities 11.02 16.13
Experience Gain/{Loss) on Plan Assets 5.10 45,00
Benefits Paid {10.24) {1.85)
Projected benefit oblig at the end of the year 426.62 340.72
ii) Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Asset
Fair value of the Plan assets at the beginni g of the year 282.28 209.75
Expected return on plan Assets 21.45 1678
Ci ibuti 75.00 50,00
Benefits Paid (10.24) (1.95)
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) on plan assets 22.61 7.70
Fair value of plan asset at the end of the year 391.10 282.28
i) A recognised in Bal, Sheet
Defined Benefit Obligation (426.62) (340.72)
Fair value of plan assets 391.10 282.28
Net (Liability)/ Asset recognised in the Balance Sheet (35.52) (58.44)

Rs in Lakhs
iv) Exy recognized in stat t of profit or loss under the head employee benefit exp 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Current Service Cost 54.66 39.47
Interest Expense on DBO 25.20 17.42
| (Income) on plan assets (21.45) (16.78)
Net Interest Cost 375 0.64
Exp recognized in § of Profit or Loss 58.41 40.11
v} Re-measurement for the period in OCI
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss due to Demographic A ption changes in DBO 0.17 -
Actuarial (Galn) / Less due to Financial A ption changes in DBO 11.02 16.13
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss due to Experience on DBO 5.10 45.00
Return on Plan Assets | } / Less than Discount rate (22.61) [7.70)
Return on reimbursement rights (excluding interest income) - E
Changes in asset ceiling/onerous liability (excluding interest income) * %
Total Actuarial (Gain) fLoss included in OCH 6.32) 53.43
vi} Principal Actuarial A pti 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18
Fil ial Assumptions
Discount Rate 6.60% 7.60% 8.00%
Salary Escalation 8.20% 9.00% 9.00%
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26.05

26.06

Employee benefits (Continued)
Rs in lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18
Demographic Assumptions
Mortality Rate IALM {2012-14) IAI:M {2006-08) IAI..M {2006-08)
Ultimate Ultimate Ul
Withdrawal Rate 21-30yrs-10%, 21-30yrs-10%, 21-30yrs-10%,
31-34yrs-12%, 31-34yrs-12%, 31-34yrs-12%,
35-44yrs-7% 35-44yrs-7% 35-44yrs-7%
45-50yrs-3%, 45-50yrs-3%, 45-50yrs-3%,
51-54yrs-2%, 51-54yrs-2%, 51-54yrs-2%,
& 3
55yrs & above-1% | 55yrs & above-1% ;’;:vrs b
|Retirement age 60 years &0 years B0 years

(i} As per para 83 of Ind AS 19, the rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations (both funded and unfunded) shall be determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting

period on government bonds

(i) Disclosure related to indication of effect of the defined benefit plan on entity’s future cash flows —

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18|
Year 1 22.50 18.33 13.92
Year2 22.13 19.03 12.76
Year 3 21.36 18.96 13.16
Year 4 20.97 18.0% 12.98
Year 5 20.7% 17.91 12.24
Year 6 to 10 86.17 78.02 54.93
(vil) Sensitivity Analysis:

Rs in lakhs
Defined Benefit Obligati 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 01-Apr-18
Discount rate
- Discount rate - 100 basis points 482.16 386.37 213.03
- Discount rate + 100 basis points 377.21 302.38 165.53
Salary increase rate
- Rate - 100 basis points 415.43 302.51 165.66
- Rate + 100 basis points 480.68 385.29 212.34

C. Compensated Absences:

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as liability at the present value
of defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date. Accordingly, an amount of Rs.118.23 lakhs been charged te the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 (31 March

2019: R5.94.49 lakhs).

The Company is engaged in primarily financing equipment manufactured and sold in India by its holding company and its affiliates which, in the context of IND AS 108 - “Operating Segment” constitute

majorly single reportable business segment.

Disclosure as required by Indian Acc

dard (Ind AS) - 24 on “Related Party Disclosures

A} Names of related parties and description of relationship:
5r No. Names of Related party |N'atme of Relationship

1 Mr. Satyen Suhas Shah- Managing Director- (Date upto- 30 June 2019} |Key Management Personnel (KMP)
2 Mr. Abhay Dinkar Dhokte - Director {Date Fram- 1 July 2019) |Kev Man 1t Personnel (KMP)
3 Mr. Ajit Jain- Director IKev Management Personnel (KMP)
4 Mr.Felix Frie- Director [key M 1t Personnel (KMP)
5 Mr. Manish Madhav Phalke - Director (Date from- 11 July 2019) |Ke\r Management Personnel (KMP)
6 Mr. Sudhir Thite — Company Secretary (Date upto- 19 August 2019) |Kev Management Personnel (KMP)
7 Mr. Bhushan Manoj Kotecha {Date from 19 August 2019 upto-2 March 2020) |Ke\r M it Personnel [KMP)
8 Miss. Vaishnavi Bhupendra Suratwala- (Date From- 2 March 2020} Key Management Personnel (KMP)
9 Deere & Company Ultimate Helding Company
10 John Deere India Private Limited Holding Company
11 John Deere Asia Singapore Pte Limited Intermediate Holding Company
12 Deere Credit Services Inc Fellow Subsidiary (where transaction exist)
13 John Deere GMBH & Company Fellow Subsidiary (where transaction exist)
14 John Deere Brasil Ltda. Fellow Subsidiary (where transaction exist)
15 John Deere Leasing (Thailand) Limited Fellow Subsidiary (where tr ion exist)
16 John Deere Finance Lease Co Ltd (China) Fellow Subsidiary (where transaction exist)
¥ Banco John Deere 5.4, Fellow Subsidiary (where transaction exist)
18 Jahn Deere Financial Limited {Australia) Fellow Subsidiary (where tr ion exist)
19 Wirtgen India Private Limited Fellow Subsidiary (where transaction exist)
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Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 24 on “Related Party Discl {Continued)
B) Transaction with Related parties:-
Rs in lakhs
Ultimate o
Sr. No. Particulars i Held |
articula Holding olding Company Subsidiaries KMP Total
Company
1 Remuneration- KMP ] i 3 205.25 205.25
() E-I L) (203.96) {203.96)
2 Inter Company deposit received ° 77,000.00 i i 77,000.00
) (73,976.99) (-} ) (73,576.59)
3 Inter Company Deposit repaid ¥ 77,000.00 il | 77,000.00
() (73,976.99) () i) (73,976.99)
4 Allotment of Equity shares 1 5.165.00 i A 5,165.00
(-} (5,000.00) ) ] fs,ooo.oaw
5 Interest expense g 391.65 ] 391.65
(-} (59.40) ) (=) (59.40)
3] Other reimbursament 2.88 52263 161.71 i 687.22
=) (504.86) {12.18) -} [517.04)
7 Marngament s {incama) . 24.36 742.77 - 767.14
() ) (240.82) () (240.82)
8 Management fees (Expense) T 508.57 638.09 § 1,206.66
8] (427.35) (276.73) () (704.08)
9 Facility cost : 186.62 " 4 186.62|
{-) (121.20) () i) (121.20)
10 Al e 1,005.71 997.82 16.14 E 2,019.67]
: (699.34) (82.89) {13.82) ) (796.05)
1 Reimbursement of Salary (paid} i 320.99 i = 320,99
t) (198.91) ) (@] (198.91)
12 Reimbursement of Salary (received ) = 7 53.69 ki 53.69
) ) (69.81) {-) (69.81)
13 Other expenses o il 051 ki 19.51
(84.83) (9.10 (-] 8] (93.93)
14 Other Income K i i N
) (139.50) ) ) (135.50)]
15 Payables at the end of the year 148.23 167.52 570.09
{212.05) (160.65)| (235.23) (1.64) (609.57)
16 Receivables at the end of the year 140.78 114,15 182.96 = 437,89
] 3 (130.04) ] (130.04)

Notes:

i) The amounts are excluding indirect taxes

i} There are no amounts written off or written back during the year in respect of debts due from related party.
iit) Figures in brackets represent figures for previous year,

26.07 Operating Leases:

) ation excludes p

for employee benefits as separate actuarial valuation for KMP is not available.

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative information has not been restated. Brief description of nature and type of lease assets.

A. Right of use assets Rs in |lakhs
Particulars Premises Total
Balance as at April 01, 2019 353.34 353.34
Add: Intial direct cost - -
Add: Addition during the year 35.07 35.07
On account of r ement of lease liability - -
Less: depreciation charged for the period (128.36) (128.36)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 260.05 260.05
B. Lease liabiliti Rs in lakhs
Particulars As at
March 31, 2020
Lease liabilities 270.98
C. Interest exp on leasa liabiliti Rs in lakhs
Particulars As at
March 31, 2020
Interest on lease liabilities 25.32
D. Amounts recognised in the it of cash flow Rs in lakhs
Particulars As at
March 31, 2020
Total cash outflow far leases 142.76
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26.07 Operating Leases: (Continued)
E. Maturity analysis — contractual L

d cash flows

Rs in lakhs
Particulars As at
March 31, 2020
Less than one year 127.65
One to five years 149.28
More than five years 36.39
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at March 31, 2020 313.32
26.08 Earnings Per Share is calculated as follows:
Rs in lakhs
Sr No. Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-ML13|
i) MNet Profit attributable to shareholders 2,533.22 2,922.07
ii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares 3,485 2,958
i) Nominal value of equity share 10 10!
iv) Basic and Diluted 0.73 O.SQI
Note: There is no dilution to basic EPS since there are no outstanding potentially dilutive equity shares.
26.09 Provision for contingency and losses on loans given to customers [financing activities)
Rs in lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19|
Opening balance 2,805.08 2,086.79
Provided during the year 3,923.99 1,450.11
Provision utilized during the year {878.59) (771.82)
Clasing balance 5,850.48 2,805.08
{Refer significant accounting policies for brief description of the nature of the provision)
26.10 Compliance with Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Rs in lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
The Company has amounts due to suppliers under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develop Act. 2006 {MSMED Act) -
The disclosure pursuant to the said Act is as under: -
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act , 2006 - 1.08
Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act on the above amount, unpaid . 2
Payments made to suppliers (other than interest ) beyond the appointed date, during the year 6.62 0.61
Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act (other than section 16) - -
interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act { section 16) - -
Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act for payments already made beyond the appointed date during the current year 0.01 0.00
Interest accrued and r ining unpaid to suppliers under MSMED as at year end 0.01 0.00
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the 0.01 i
small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act, 2006
26.11 Income Taxes:
(A} The tax effect of significant timing differences that has resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities are given below:
Rsin lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20| 31-Mar-19 1-Apr-18
Deferred tax liabilities
(i) Debenture issue expenses 43.75] 91.37] 9.21)
(if) Depreciation on property, plant, equipment 5.07 4.42] 7.18
_l
Total 48.82 95.79] 16.39
Deferred tax assets
(i} Impairment loss allowance 1,472.57 816,83 607.67,
{iii} Employee benefit 217.43 245,00 176.05
{iv) Deferred income 4?0,13' 361.07 261,38
I
Total 2,160.18] 1,822.90| 1,045.10
Net deferred tax Asset 2,111.36| 1,327.11 1,028.71
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Income Taxes: (Continued)

{B)  The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at statutory income tax rate :
Rs in lakhs
As at March 31, | As at March 31
Particul; i
AR 2020 2018
Frofit before income taxes 3,389.97 4,057.88
Indian statutory income tax rate 25.17% 29.12%
Expected income tax 853.26 1,181.66
Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income tax to:
Income exempt from tax (91.50) -
Non deductible expenses 12.08 7.02
Other exg . (3.82)
Rate change Impact 180.25
Total income tax expense 954.10 1,184.86
Taxes effects for earlier years {97.35) (49.05)
Total income tax exp i in Profit and Loss Account 856.75 1,135.81
Note: The Company’s reconciliation of the effective tax rate is based on its domestic tax rate applicable to respective financial years
{C}  Theincome tax expense charge to Profit and Loss account:
Rs in lakhs
Asat March 31, | Asat March 31,
Particul ' g
ACERE 2020 2019
Current tax:
Current tax expense for the period 1,738.35 1,483.25
Current tax exp / (benefit) pertaining to prior years (97.35) (49.04)
Deferred tax benefit
Origination and reversal of y differences (784.25) {619.86)
Change in tax rates / Ind As Impact - 32146
Total i tax exg recognised in the year 856.75 1,135.81
o) A recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
Rs in lakhs
For the year
For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2020 ended March 31,
2019
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability {asset) {1.59) 15.56
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Net amount red to profit or loss - -
(E)}  The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2020 are as follows:
Rs in lakhs
Recognised /
Particulars 1st April 2019 | reversed through | Recognised in OCI | 31st March 2020
i profit and loss
Deferred Tax Assets :
(a) Impairment loss all 816.84 655.73 - 1,472.57
(b) Employee benefit 245.00 (25.96) (1.58) 217.45
{c) Deferred income 361.06 108.12 * 470.18
Deferred Tax Liabilities
(a) Debenture issue exy (91.37) 47.61 - (43.76)
{b) Depreciation on property, plant, equipment (4.42) [0.66) - (5.08)
Net Deferred Tax Asset 1,327.11 785.84 {1.59) 2,111.36
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Income Taxes: (Continued)
The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2019 are as follows:

Rs in lakhs
Recognised /
Particulars 1st April 2018 d through | Recognised in OCI | 315t March 2019
profit and loss
Deferred Tax Assets :
(a) Impairment loss allowance 607.67 209.17 - 816.84
{b) Employee benefit 176.05 84.50 [15.56) 244,99
{c) Deferred income 261.38 59.69 - 361.07
Deferred Tax Liabilities :
{a) Debenture issue {9.21) (82.16) - (91.37)
(b} Depreciation on property, plant, equip (7.18) 2.76 - [4.42)
Net Deferred Tax Asset 1,028.71 313.96 (15.56) 1,327.11
26.12 Corporate Social Responsibility

As per provisions of section 135 of Companies Act 2013, the Company was required to spend 2% of average net profits earned during the three immediately preceding financial years, in pursuance of its
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy on the activities specified in Schedule VIl of the Act.

Rs in |akhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 41.10 2817
Amount spent during the year : 41.76 27.89
** The above expenses are for a purpose other than construction or acqulsition of any asset

26.13 Employee share-based payment plans

Deere and Company, the ultimate holding Company issues stock options and restricted stock awards to key employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. Options are awarded with the exercise price
equal to the market price and becomne exercisable in 1 to 3 years after grant. Options expire 10 years after the date of grant. Restricted stock awards generally vests after 3 years. The details of the plan
are as under:

Share-based payment arrangement that existed at any time during the period:

Particulars STOCK OPTIONS RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS (RSUs)
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

{A) Share-based payment arrangement that existed at any time during the period:

(i) Description of each type of such payment Stock Options Stock Options RSUs RSUs

(i) General terms of options granted Vesting for stock options: 34%

inyear 1, 33% in year 2 and

Vesting for stock options: 34%
inyear 1, 33% in year 2 and
33% inyear 3

RSUs convert to shares on 3rd
anniversary of the award

R5Us convert to shares on 3rd
anniversary of the award

33% inyear 3
{iii} Method of settl {e.g., whether in cash or Stock Options can settle in
equity) equity or cash. All exercises

during this period were settled
in cash

Stock Options can settle in
equity or cash, All exercises
during this period were settled
in cash

RS5Us settle in shares only

RSUs settle in shares only
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Employee share-based payment plans: (Continued)

This table includes both stock options only 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-18
(B} Number and weighted average exercise prices of .
bt ontioRs Kot sek OF the folloming Srolipe ot wRtlaE: Nao. Rs. (Per Unit) No. Rs. (Per Unit} No. Rs. {Per Unit) No. Rs. (Per Unit)
(i} outstanding at the beginning of the period
2,862 5,866.54 2,862 5,866.84 436 9,157.68 258 8,404.29
{iijtransferred out during the period
2,862 6,392.32 - 436 9,670.28 - -
{ilijtransferred in during the period
. & = - 348 9,670.28 = -
(iv) granted during the period
- - = = 149 12,793.68 178 10,249.66
{v) ferfeited during the period
{vi] exercised during the period
- - - 153 13,004.78 * =
(vil) expired during the period
{viii) outstanding at the end of the period
- - 2,862 5,866.84 344 11,952.33 436 9,157.68
(ix) exercisable at the end of the period
¥ - 2,561 5,912.00 * - - "
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
(C} (i) For share options exercised during the period,
|disclose the weighted average share price at the date of
exercise
- - . 153 13,004.78 . .
(i) If options were exercised on a regular basis
throughout the period, disclose the weighted average
share price during the period
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
No. Rs. (Per Unit) No. Rs. {Per Unit) No. Rs. (Per Unit) No. Rs. (Per Unit)
(D) For share options outstanding at the end of the
period: # - . 3 i & = %
(i) The range of exercise prices and weighted average
price for remaining contractual |ife - - 2,862 5,866.84 344 11,952.33 436 9,157.68
(ii) If the range of exercise price is wide, the outstanding
options shall be divided into ranges that are meaningful s 4 & 2 - z %
for assessing the number and timing of additional shares

For convenience, amounts in Indian Rupees in Note 26.13 represents US dollar amount translated at March 31, 2020 rate of Rs. 75.39 = US doliar 1.00 and at March 31, 2019 Rs. 63,189 = US dollar 1.00.

Amount represents per share value.
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Share based payments expenditure:

Share based payments expense (included in Note 26.13: Employee Benefit Expense) recognised during the year represents the difference between market value of equity shares as at the grant date and

market value of equity shares as at the exercise date.

26.14 Net Gain / (Loss) On Fair Value Changes

Rs in lakhs

Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2020 2019
(AlNet Gain / (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(i) On trading portfolio
- Derivatives - -
- Others - -
(i1)On financial instruments d. d at fair value through profit or loss (154.45) -
(B) Others - -
(C) Total Net gain/{loss) on fair value ch (154.45) -
(D) Fair value ch
(i) Realised .
{ii) Unrealised (154.45) -
Total Net gain/{loss} on fair value ch (154.45) -
26.15 Financial assets and liabilities by category
{i}  The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at March 21, 2020 is as follows:

Rs in lakhs

Particulars Fair value Fair Value D i Amortised cost Total Carrying
through Profit |through Other in i notin Value
or Loss Compreh hedging
ive Income lati

Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 8,024.42 B,024.42
Bank balance other than (a) above - = - = 0.59 0.59
Receivables- Trade receivabl - - - - 266.44 266.44
Loans e = - = 233,045.48 233,045.48
Other financial assets - - - 66.62 66.62
Total - - - - 241,403.55 241,403.55
Financial Liabilities:
Derivative financial Instrument 154.45 - = - 154.45
Payahles
-Trade Payable - - - 2 1,143.60 1,143.60
Debt Securities - - - - 109,119.70 109,115.70
Borrowings (Other than Debt securities) - - - - 85,507.90 85,507.90
Lease liabilities - - - - 27098 270,98
Other financial liabilities - - # - 467.28 467.28
Total 154.45 = - = 196,509.46 196,663.91
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Financial assets and liabilities by category: (Continued)

The carrylng value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2019 is as follows :

Rs in lakhs
Particulars Fair value Fair Value Derivative Derivative Amortised cost Total Carrying
hrough Profit |through Other |instr i notin Value
or Loss Comprehens  |hedging hedging
ive Income lationshi relationship
Financial Assets: |
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 7,629.05 7.629.05
Bank balance other than (a) above 0.61 0.61
Receivables- Trade receivabl - - 189.30 1839.30
Loans = 167,609.22 167,609.22
Other financial assets - - 37.83 37.83
Total - - - 175,466.01 175,466.01
Financial Liabilities:
Payables
Trade Payables - - 999.18 999,18
Debt Securities - - 80,622.98 80,622.98
Borrowings (Other than Debt securities) = - 54,744,895 54,744.95 |
Other financial liabilities 505.57 505.57
Total = - - 136,872.68 136,872.68
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as at April 1, 2018 is as follows :
Rs in lakhs
Particulars Fair value Fair Value Derivative Derivative Amortised cost Total Carrying
hrough Profit |through Other i notin Value
or Loss Comprehens  |hedging hedging
ive Income |ati lationshi
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 1,749.11 1,749.11
Bank balance other than (a) above 0.57 0.57
Receivables- Trade receivables - - - 99.23 99.23
Loans - - = 117,851.73 117,851.73
Other financial assets = - - 35.11 35.11
Total = - - 119,735.75 119,735.75
Financial Liabilities:
Payables
Trade Payables - - - 578.39 578.39
Borrowings {Other than Debt securities) C = = 87.561.82 87,561.92
Other financial liabiliti - - - 372.12 37212
Total - - - 88,512.43 88,512.43
Fair Value heirarchy :
Rs in lakhs
As at March 31, 2020 Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets:
Loans 233,045.48 - 240,161.62 240,161.62
Total 233,045.48 = 240,161.62 240,161.62
Fi ial Liabilities:
Derivative financial Instrument 154.45 154.45 154.45
Debt Securities 109,119.70 112,500.21 - 112,500.21
Borrowings (Other than Debt securities) 85,507.90 86,911.31 86,911.31
[Total 194,782.05 199,565.97 - 199,565.97
As at March 31, 2019 Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets:
Loans 167,609.22 - 171,332.91 171,332.91
Total 167,609.22 - 171,332.91 171,332.91
Financial Liabilities:
Debt Securities £0,622.98 81,450.01 = 81,450.01
Borrowings (Other than Debt securities) 54,744.95 56,358.98 - 56,358.98
ITotaI 135,367.93 137,808.99 - 137,808.99
As at April 1, 2018 Carrying Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets:
Loans 117,851.73 - 120,126.11 120,126.11
Total 117,851.73 - 120,126.11 120,126.11
Financial Liabilities: -
Borrowings (Other than Debt securities) 87,561.92 94,352 .41 94,352.41
[Total 87,561.92 94,352.41 . 94,352.41
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26.16

Financial assets and liabilities by category: (Continued)

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1) : This level of heirarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to guoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Valuation technique with observable inputs (Level 2} : This level of heirarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices), This level of heirarchy include Company's over the counter (OTC) derivative contracts.

Valuation technigue with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) : This level of heirarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs). Fair values are measured in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in
the same instrument nor are they based on available market data,

There has been no transfer between level 1, level 2 and level 3 for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.,

Valuation technique used to determine fair value of financial instruments.

{a) Derivatives are fair valued using fair values obtained from banks and where applicable, are classified in Level 2.

(b} The fair value of loans arising from financing activities has been estimated by discounting expected cash flows using rates at which loans of similar credit quality and maturity would be made and

internal assumptions such as expected credit losses and estimated collateral value for repeossessed vehicles as at March 31, 2020 and 2019. Since significant uncbservable inputs are applied in measuring
the fair value of loans arising from financing activities, they are classified in Level 3.

Fair value of financial assets/ liabilities measured at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of other financial assets and other financial liabilities other than those disclosed in the table above valued at level 2 and level 3 are considered to be the same as their fair values
due to the short term maturities of instruments and no material differences in the fair value.

Financial Risk Review

The Company is exposed to certain financial risks namely credit risk, interest risk, currency risk & liquidity risk. The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and

oversight of the Company's risk fr k. The Board of Directors has blished the Risk Manag Committee and Asset Liability Committee (ALCQ). The Risk Management
committee and ALCO is responsible for developing and menitoring risk management policies for its business and ensuring pliance with the y/regulatory fr k of the risk manag
process.

The Covid-19 pandemic has resulted in a significant decrease in the economic activities across the country, on account of natisnwide lockdown that started on 25 March 2020. The lockdown alse
affected the company's business operations in the last week of March 2020, Further, in accord with the RBI guidelines relating to 'Covid-19 Regulatory Package' dated 27 March 2020, the Company
offered EMI moratorium to its customers based on requests. On 22 May 2020 RBI has announced an extension of the meratorium, the Company is currently evaluating the option to be offered to its
customers. Estimates and associated assumptions applied in preparing these financial results, especially for determining the impairment allowance for the financial assets (Loans), are based on historical
experience and other emerging, forward looking factors on account of the pandemic. The Company believes that the factors considered are reasonable under the current ci ces. The Company
has used early indicators of maratarium and delayed payment metrics observed alongwith an estimation of potential stress an probability of default and exposure at default due to Covid-19 situation in
developing the estimates and assumptions to assess the impairment loss allowance on loans, Given the dynamic nature of the pandemic situation, these estimates are subject to uncertainty and may be
affected by the severity and duration of the pandemic. In the event the impacts are more severe or prolonged than anticipated, this will have a corresponding impact on the carrying value of financial
assets and the financial position.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers fail to discharge their contractual obligations.The Ci has a comprehensive fi k for itaring eredit quality of

its retail loans primarily based on days past due monitoring at period end. Repay by individual custi and pertfolio is tracked regularly and required steps for recovery are taken through follow
ups and legal recourse.

Exposure to Credit Risk

The carrying amount of the financial assets rep the i 1 credit exp e, being the total of the carrying amount of balances with banks, time deposits with banks, loans arising from
financing activities, derivative financial instruments, trade receivables and other financials assets.

Financial assets that are neither past due or impaired

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and depoesits with banks/ financial institutions is generally low as the said deposits have been made with banks/ financial institution who have been assigned high
credit rating by international/ domestic rating agencies. Credit risk on derivative instruments is generally low as the company enters into derivative contracts with reputed banks. None of the company's
cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks are past due or impaired. Regarding the derivative contracts, trade receivables and other financial assets are neither impaired ner past due. There
were no indications as at March 31, 2020, that defaults in payment obligations will occur.

i} Loans arising from financing activities - Credit quality of financial assets and impairment loss

The carrying amount of loans represent the maximum credit exposure net of provision for impairment. Loans are derived from financing activities to customers. The Company mostly provide loans to
retail individual customers in Rural and Semi urban area which is of small ticket size. Credit risk for loans is managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and pericdic
monitoring of the credit worthiness of its customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Credit risk is menitored by the credit risk department of the Company's
independent risk department/ function who have the responsibility for reviewing and managing credit risk.

For the loans financed to customers, the Company covers/secures the credit risk associated with the loans lended to customers by creating charge/ hypothecation/ security on the assets as mentioned/
specified in the loan agreement with the customers. The Company does not have a high concentration of credit risk to a single customer exceeding 10% of the Company revenue. The Company makes
the allowance for losses on its portfolio of loans on the basis of expected future collection from receivables. The future collections are estimated on the basis of past collection trend which are adjusted
for changes in current circumstances as well as expected changes in collection on account of future with respect to certain macro economic factor.
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(i}

(i}

The following table sets out information about the credit quality of financial assets measured at amartised cost. The amounts in the table represent gross carrying amounts for financial assets,

Loans exposure by Sector Rs In lakhs

Particulars As at March 31, |As at March 31, As at April 1,
2020 2019 2018

Loans by Sector

|i} Agricultural Sector 231,948.16 168,768.21 121,436.98

i) Construction equipments 9,582.30 3,673.37 -

Total - Gross 241,530.46 172,441.58 121,436.98

Less: Impairment allowance 5,850.48 2,805.08 2,086.75

Total Net Loans 235,679.98 169,636.50 119,350.19

Days past due method for credit quality analysis of Loans
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the days past due and year-end stage classification of gross carrying value of loans. The amounts presented

are gross of impairment allowances,

Rs in lakhs
Qutstanding Gross loans As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Days Past due
Current (Not past due) 186,982.26 - 137.78 142,093.18 - 16.28 101,556.61 - 30.23
1- 29 days 22,067.50 - 151.83 13,297.20 - 167.55 8,000.23 - 108.96
30- 59 days - 10,695.28 372,24 - 5,011.36 235.87 - 3,033.33 162.99
60- 89 days - 6,157.02 437.35 = 2,951.73 354.45 - 2,284,486 32189
90 or more days - - 14,529.19 - - 8,313.96 - = 5,938.18
Gross Exp 209,049.76 16,852.31 15,628.39 155,390.38 7,963.09 9,088.11 109,556.84 5,317.79 6,562.35
Rs in lakhs
As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 1, 2018
Impairment allowance on loans
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Days Past due
Current {Not past dug} 741.39 54.11 66.31 10.41 95.87 11.77
1- 29 days 169.23 46.99 70.33 48.E0 67.93 31.42
30- 58 days 187.59 108.21 86.55 68.52 58.59 46.82
60- B9 days 168.12 125.26 84.75 100.80 71.41 91.21
S0 or more days 4,249.58 2,268.61 1,611.77
Total 910.62 355.71 4,584.15 136.64 171.30 2,497.14 163.80 130.00 1,792.99
Net Exp 208,135.14 16,496.60 11,044.24 155,253.74 7,791.79 6,590.97 109,393.04 5,187.79 4,769.36
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(iii)

Days past due method for credit quality analysis of Loans: {Conti 1) Rs in lakhs
As at March 31, 2020 Asset Group  |Days Past due igross |Expected Expected credit Carrying amount
carrying amount |probability of losses net of
at default default impairment
Loss allowance measured at 12 month expected eredit |Financial assets for which Loans Current 186,982.26 0.40% 741.39 186,240.87
losses credit risk has not increased 1-29 days 22,067.50 0.77% 169.23 21,898.27
significantly since initial 209,049.76 0.44% 910,62 208,139.14
recognition Total
Financial assets for which
credit risk has increased Laars 30 - 59 days 10,695.29 1.75% 187.59 10,507.70
significantly and not credit- 60 - B9 days 6,157.02 2.73% 168.12 5,988.90
impaired Total 16,852.31 2.11% 355.71 16,496.60
Loss allowance measured at |ife-time expected credit Current 137.78 39.27% 54.11 83.67
lasses Ericial sisats torwkidh 1-29 days 151.83 30.95% 46,99 104.83
cfedit risk hag incraased s 30 - 59 days 372.24 29.07% 108.21 264.03
significantly and credit- 60 - 89 days 437.35 28.64% 125.26 312.10
impaired 90 days and 14,529.19 29.25% 4,243.58 10,279.61
above
Total 15,628.39 29.33% 4,584,15 11,044.24
Grand Total 241,530.46 2.42% 5,850.48 235,679.98
Rs in lakhs
As at March 31, 2019 Asset Group |Days Past due |Estimated gross |Expected Expected credit Carrying amount
carrying amount |probability of losses net of
at default default impairment
Loss allowance measured at 12 month expected credit  |Financial assets for which Loans Current 142,093.18 0.05% 66.31 142,026.87
losses credit risk has not Increased 1-29 days 13,297.20 0.53% 70.33 13,226.87
signiffeantly sines sl Total 155,390.38 0.09% 136.64 155,253.74
recognition
Financial assets for which 30 - 58 days 5,011.36 1.73% 86.55 4,924 .81
credit risk has i d 60 - 89 days 2,951.73 2.87% 84.75 2,866.98
significantly and not credit- Total 7,963.09 2.15% 171.30 7,791.79
impaired
Loss allowance measured at life-time expected credit Loans Current 16.28 £3.96% 1041 5.87
ficus R W 1-29 days 167.55 29.13% 48.80 118.75
B T — 30 - 59 days 235.87 29.05% 68.52 167.35
|significantly and credit- 60 - 89 days 354.45 28.44% 100.80 253.65
limpaired S0 days and 831396 27.29% 2,268.61 6,045.35
above
Total 9,088.11 27.48% 2,497.14 6,590.97
i Grand Total 172,441.58 1.6% 2,805.08 169,636.50
Rs in lakhs
As at April 1, 2018 Asset Group |Days Past due |Estimated gross |Expected credit  |Expected credit Carrying amount
carrying amount |loss rates losses net of
at default impairment
provision
Loss allowance measured at 12 month expected credit  |Financial assets for which Loans Current 101,556.61 0.08% 95.87 101,460.74
losses credit risk has not increased 1-29 days 8,000.23 0.85% 67.93 7,932.,30
significantly since initial Total 109,556.84 0.15% 163.80 109,393.04
recognition
Financial assets for which 30 - 59 days 3,033.33 1.93% 58.59 2,974.74
credit risk has increased 60 - 89 days 2,284.46 3.13% 7141 2,213.05
significantly and not credit- Total 5,317.79 2.44% 130.00 5,187.79
impaired
=N ) Loans Current 30.33 38.79% 11.77 18.56
Loss allowance measured at life-time expected credit ) . ) 1-29 days 108.96 28.84% 342 7754
losses Flisneia) assats far which 30- 59 days 162.99 28.73% 46.82 11617
credit risk has
significantly and credit- 60 - 89 days 321.89 28.33% 91.21 230.68
, 90 days and 5,938.18 27.14% 1,611.77 4,326.41
Impaired
above
Total 6,562.35 27.32% 1,792.99 4,769.36
Grand Total 121,436.98 1.72% 2,086.79 119,350.19
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Liquidity Risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO) for the management of the Company’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liguidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Maturity analysis of liabilities

The table below set cut carrying amount of financial liability according to when they are expected to be settled.

As on March 31, 2020 Rs in lakhs
| Particulars Less than 3 Owver3 Over 6 Months |Over 1 yearupto Over 3 years upto |Over 5 years Total
months Months upto |upto 1year 3 years 5years
6 "
Financial liabilities
{i} Derivative financial Instrument - - - 154.45 - 154.45
{a) Trade payables
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.01 = = - 0.01
-total outstanding dues of creditors other than 1,143.59 - - - 1,143.59
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(b) Other Payables
{iii}) Debt securities (33.86) 30,923.02 28,295.29 49,935.25 - 1098,118.70
(iv) Borrowings (Other than Debt securities) 16,957.50 4,100.00 5,650.00 58,800.00 - 85,507.90
(v) Lease liabiliti - - 110.71 160.27 = 270.98
(vi} Other financial liabilities 101.75 - 365.53 - 467,28
Total Financial liabilities 18,169.39 35,023.02 34,421.53 109,045.97 - 196,663.91
As on March 31, 2019 Rs in lakhs
Particulars Less than 3 Over 3 Over 6 Months |Over 1 year upto |Owver 3 years upto |Over 5 years Total
months Months upto |upto 1year 3 years 5 years
6 th
Financial liabilities
{a) Derivative financial Instrument - - - - - -
(b} Payables
(i} Trade payables
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.08 - - - - 1.08
~total ol ling dues of creditors other than 998.10 = - - - 998.10
micro enterprises and small enterprises
[iil Other Payabl
{iii) Debt securities {34.76} (4.57) 836.26 79,826.05 - 80,622.98
(iv) Borrowings |Other than Debt securities) 8,224.55 6,840.00 10,230.00 25,750.00 3,700.00 54,744.95
[v) Lease liabilities = i = i N .
{vi) Other fi ial liabiliti 56,80 - 448.77 - - 505.57
Total Financial liabilities 9,246.17 6,835.43 11,515.03 105,576.05 3,700.00 136,872.68
As on April 1, 2018 Rs in lakhs
Particulars Less than 3 Over 3 Over 6 Months |Over 1yearupto (Over 3 years upto |Owver 5 years Total
months Months upto |upto 1year 3 years 5 years
6 '
Financial liabilities
(i} Derivative financial Instrument - - & - - -
(i) Payables # = - . o 3
(a) Trade payables % . i a A
-total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 3.00 3.00
small enterprises b ) i )
-total outstanding dues of creditors ather than 575.39 575.39
micro enterprises and small enterprises = ) : ¥
{b) Other Payables - = . « & i
(iii) Debt securities - = - - - =
(iv]) Borrawings {Other than Debt securities) 7,041.92 7,770.00 32,770.00) 33,530.00 £,450.00 87,561.92
(v) Lease liabilit 2 = p = 2 =
{vi) Other financial liabili 26.31 - 345,81 - . 37212
Total Financial liabilities 7,646.62 7,770.00 33,115.81) 33,530.00 6,450.00 88,512.43
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Notes forming part of financial statements

(i)

Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

The table below shows the maturity analysis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled

Rs. In lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 1-Apr-18
Current Non- Current |Total Current Non- Current _ |Total Current Non- Current Total
ASSETS
Financial Assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 8,024.42 = 8,024.42 7,629.05 - 7,629.05 1,749.11 E 1,745.11
(i} Bank balance other than (a) above 0.59 - 0.59 0.11 0.50 0.61 0.07 0.50 057
(i bles- Trade r bi 266.44 ¢ 266.44 188.30 - 189.30 99.23 - 99.23
{iv) Loans 94,135.02| 138,910.46| 233,04548 69,457.90/ 98,151.32 167,609.22 47,314.56 70,537.17 117,851.73
(v} Other financial assets 33.81 27.81 66.62 - 37.83 37.83 - 35.11 35.11
Total financial assets 102,465.27| 138,938.27 241,403.55 77,276.36 98,189.65 175,466.01 49,162.97 70,572.78 119,735.75
Non-financial Assets
{i) Current tax (Net) - 415,16 415.16 - 234,71 234.71 = 3243 32.43
(ii) Deferred tax assets (net) - 2,111.36 2,111.36 | 1,327.11 1,327.11 E 1,028.71 1,028.71
(iii) Property, Plant and Equig it - 186.20 186.20 | 132.76| 132.76 & 91.98 91.98
(iv) Capital work-in-progress - 36,72 36.72 = 1.35 135 - 211 211
{v) Right of Use Assets - 260.05 260.05 - -| - = - -
{vi) Other Non fi ial assets 711.12 - 71112 347.55 - 347.55 197.67 = 157.67
Total Non-financial assets 711.12 3,009.49 3,720.61 347.55 1,695.93 2,043.48 197.67 1,155.23 1,352.90
Total Assets 103,176.39| 141,947.76 245,124.16 77,623.91 99,885.58] 177,509.49 49,360.64 71,728.01 121,088.65
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Derlvative fi ial Instrument ~ 154.45 154.45 7 2 e 3 £ -
{ii) Payables -
(a) Trade payabl = L A * = : -
T e e ool 0.01 s 001 108 ; 108 300 : 300
|enterprises and small enterprises
-total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprisas and small 1,143,59 - 1,143.59 998.10 - 938.10 575.38 - 57539
enterprises
{b) Other Payables
-total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and - s 5 s = i 3 2
-total out: ling dues of litors
other than micro enterprises and small 5 - -
enterprises & & = N @ &
(iii} Debt securities 59,184.44 49,935.26|  109,115.70 796,93 79,826.05 80,622.98 E g 7
{iv) Borrowings (Other than Debt securi 26,707.90 58,800.00 85,507.90 25,294.95) 29,450.00) 54,744.95 47,581.92 39,980.00 87,561.92
{v) Lease liabilities 11071 160.27 27098 - - - - - -

vi) Other financial liabiliti 467.28 - 467.28 505.57 - 505.57 37212 < 37212
Total Financial liabilities 87,613.93| 109,049.98 196,663.91 27,596.63 109,276.05) 136,872.68 48,532.43 39,980.00 88,512.43
Non-financial liabilities
{1} Current tax liabilites (Net) -| - " 4.24 - 4.24 1.52 - 152
(i} Provisions B1.88 472.23 554.11 64.39 330.18 454,57 34.52 271.98| 306.50
{iii} Other Non financial liabilities 98.95' - 98.95 73.76] -I 73.76 48.16] -| 48.16
Total Non financial liabilities 180.83 472.23 653.06| 142.39| 390,18| 532.57 84.20| 271.98 356.18

|
Total Liabilities 87,794.76| 109,522.21 197,316.97| 27,739.02 109,666.23] 137,405.25 48,616.63 40,251‘981 88,868.61
Net 47,807.19 | 40,104.24 | 32,220.04
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(i)

{iii)

Market Risk
Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, etc. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while maximising the return.

Exposure to Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company loans and borrowings are at fixed
interest rate hence any change in market interest rate will not have impact on statement of profit and loss.

Exposure to Foreign currency risk
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies and consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exposure to currency risk relates primarily to the Company's

inter

1 in a different currency from the Company’s functional currency

pany trar

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income and equity, where any transaction references more
than one currency or where assets/liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The Company evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations
by assessing its exposure to exchange rate risks.

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, EUR, AUD and THB exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company's profit

before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The Company’s expasure to other foreign currencies is not material.

The carrying amount of Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting peried are as follows :

Rs in lakhs
As on March 31, 2020 As on March 31, 2019
A g in INR ding in INR
usD EUR TBH AUD uso EUR TBH
Trade Payables (398.42) (5.16) - (20.31) (444.50) (2.78) -
Trade Receivabl 271.94 - 51.01 - £9.11 & 40.93
Rs in lakhs
Currency Change in Effect on profit
rate before tax
31-Mar-20 UsD (12.85)
EUR {0.52)
THB RS 5.10
AUD (2.03)
31-Mar-19 UsD (35.54)
EUR 10% / -10% {0.28)
THE 482

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis does nat represent the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the

year,

Derivative Financial Instruments

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional amounts:

Rs in lakhs
Derivatives held for Risk management purposes As at March 31, 2020
Naotional Fair value- lFair value- Change in rate |Effect on profit
assets liabilities before tax
Forward Contracts UsD 181.20 - INR 154.45 | 10% /-10% 15.45
Total USD 181.20 - INR 154.45

Capital Management

The Company’s capital management strategy is to effectively determine, raise and deploy capital so as to create value for its shareholders. The same is done through a mix of either equity andfor
combination of short term/long term debt as may be appropriate.
The Company is subject to the capital adequacy requirements of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI). Under RBI's capital adequacy guidelines, the Company is required to maintain a capital adequacy ratio

consisting of Tier | and Tier Il Capital.

The minimum capital ratio as prescribed by RBI guidelines and applicable to the Company, consisting of Tier | and Tier |l capital, shall not be less than 15 percent of its aggregate risk weighted assets on-
balance sheet and of risk adjusted value of off-balance sheet. The Company has complied with all regulatory requirements related capital and capital adequacy ratios as prescribed by RBI.
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Disclosures as required in terms of Annex | in accordance with Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated Sef ber 01, 2016 updated as on 17th Feb 2020 issued by Reserve Bank
of India (RBI) {Annex 1)
26.17 Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)
As per IND AS As per IGAAP
Sr.No. |Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 1-Apr-18 31-Mar-19 1-Apr-18
L CRAR (%) 19.31% 22.70% 26.04% 21.95% 25.18%
2 CRAR - Tier | capital (%) 18.92% 22.62% 25.90% 20.70% 23.93%
3 CRAR - Tier Il Capital (%) 0.35% 0.08% 0.14% 1.25% 1.25%
26.18 Investments
This section is Not applicable to the Company since there are no investments.
26.19 Derivatives
A) Forward Rate Agreement [ Interest Rate Swap Rs in lakhs
B As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
] The notional principal of swap agreements i )
i) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their obligations under the agreements - -
(i) Collateral required by the applicable NBFC upen entering into swaps - -
(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps $ . -
(v) The fair value of the swap book @ - -
B)  Exchange Traded | Rate (IR} Derivati
This section is Not applicable to the Company
€} Disclosures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives
Qualitative Disclosure Rs in lakhs
Particulars Cur‘renf'.\f :M:erest Rate
(i} Derivatives (Notianal Principal Amount) USD 181.20
For hedging 5
(i) Marked to Market Positions [1] -
Asset (+) -
Liability {-}
(i) Credit Exposure [2]
(iv) Unhedged Exposures INR 154.45

26.20 Disclosures relating to Securitisation
This section is Not applicable to the Company

26.21 Details of Financial Assets sold to Securitisation / Rec tion Company for Asset
This section is Not applicable to the Company

26.22 Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by applicable NBFCs
This section is Not applicable to the Company

26.23 Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold
This section is Not applicable to the Company
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26.24 Asset Liability Management Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities

As on March 31, 2020 Rs in lakhs

a ‘:ﬂ:":::::a A MT:;:?Z Over 2 months mu:;::pto Over 6 months | Over 1 year upto | Over 3 years upto Over 5 yeals Total
inonth) i upto 3 months :manths upto 1year 3 years 5 years

Liabilities

Borrowings frem banks 13,107.50 1,550.00 2,300.00 4,100,00 5,650.00 58,800.00 5 - 85,507.50

Market Borrowings - - - 30,957.33 28,336.21 43 876.16 - - 109,119.70

Assets

Advances * 3,235.56 4,432 09 14,820.62 27,670.43 44,412.33 115,275.01 24,405.77 - 23431181

Investments = - - - . - - - -

* Advances include amount shown in Note 7 excluding stage | and stage |l provision

As on March 31, 2019 Rs in lakhs

% ?:;:t::fl m?:;u::z Over 2 months mo:::;:pto Over 6 months | Over 1 year upto | Over 3 years upto o T Total
month) o upto 3 months o upto 1year 3 years 5 years

Liabilities

Borrowings from banks 1,624.95 1,250.00 5,350.00 6,840.00 10,230.00 25,750.00 3,700.00 - 54,744.95

Market Borrowings - - - 30.58 906.16 79,686.24 - - 80,622.98

Assets

Advances 378117 5,641.06 10,438.63 18,211.83 31,506.59 B82,437.35 15,896.50 4,03 167,917.16

Investments = - - - - - - - =

* Advances include amount shown in Note 7 excluding stage | and stage Il provision

Exposures :
26.25 There are no exposure to capital market and real estate sector durlng the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019,

26.26 Details of financing of parent company products
The principal business of the Company is providing finance for the purchase of farm equipment manufactured and sold by John Deere India Private Limited and for the construction equipment

manufactured and sold by Wirtgen India Private Limited.

26.27 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the applicable NBFC :
During the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the Company's credit exposure to single borrowers and group borrowers were within the limits preseribed by the RBI.

26.28 Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators :

FIU- Financial Intelligence Unit FINBF12765
RBI- Reserve Bank of India N-13.02027
CKYC- Central KYC (Know Yeur Customer} 20192000001626

Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators :

26.29 There has been no penalty imposed by REI and other regul during the fi ial year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.
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26.30 Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings :

During the year 2015-20
Particulars Commercial Paper
i) Rating Assigned CRISIL AL+ CRISIL AL+ [ICRA] A1+
{ii) Date of Rating 2-Mar-20 5-Feb-20 7-Feb-20
{iii) Rating Valid up to 60 Calendar Days 60 Calendar Days 90 Days
(iv) Name of the Rating Agency CRISIL Ltd CRISIL Ltd ICRA Ltd
v Amount Rs.60,000 lakhs Rs.60,000 lakhs Rs.30,000 lakhs
Particulars Term Loans NCD
: z ? : CRISIL
Rating As: d CRISIL table (Reaffirmed CRISIL Stable
{i) ing Assigne AAASS { ) AAA/ AAA/Stable
{ii) Date of Rating 2-Mar-20 2-Mar-20 2-Mar-20
(iii) Rating Valid up to 180 Days 180 Days 180 Days
{iv) Name of the Rating Agency CRISIL Ltd CRISIL Ltd CRISIL Ltd
{v} Amount R5.27,000 lakhs Rs.50,000 lakhs Rs.40,000 lakhs
During the year 2018- 19
Particulars Commercial Paper
(i) Rating Assigned CRISIL AL+ CRISIL A+ CRISIL AL+
{ii) Date of Rating 18-May-18 5-Oct-18 21-Dec-18
(i) | Rating Valid up to 60 Calendar days 60 Calendar days AR
(iv) MName of the Rating Agency CRISIL Ltd CRISIL Ltd CRISIL Ltd
(v) Amount Rs.30,000 lakhs Rs.60,000 lakhs Rs.60,000 lakhs
| Particulars Term Loans NCD
(i} Rating Assigned CRISILAAA/Stable [Reaffirmed) CRISIL AAA/Stable (Reaffirmed) ChISIL
AAASStable
{ii) Date of Rating 10-lan-18 10-Jan-19 25-Feb-19
(i} Rating Valid up to 180 Days 1 Year 1 Year
{iv} Name of the Rating Agency CRISIL Ltd CRISIL Ltd CRISIL Ltd
{v) Amount Rs.27,000 lakhs Rs.50,000 lakhs Rs.40,000 lakhs

26.31 Remuneration of Directors
The remuneration to directors has been disclosed in Point 26.06

26.32 Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies ;- NIL

26.33 Revenue Recognition - Please refer Significant accounting policie no. 2.6

26.34 Ind AS 110 -C lidated Financial Stat {CFS)
This section is Not applicable to the Company
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26.35 Provision for Contingencies:-

(A)

{8)

(€

(D)

Rs in lakhs

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
kup of Provision and contingencies shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and loss Account
Provision for Depreciation on Investment ¥ )
Provision for Stage |Il 2,087.00 704.16
Provision made towards income tax 1,641.00 1,434.21
Other provision and contingencies —
Leave encashment 118.23 94.49
Gratuity 58.41 40.11
Provision for Stage | and Il 958.40 14.12
26.36 Draw Down from Reserves
There has been no draw down from the Statutory Reserves under section 45-IC of The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.
26.37 Concentration of Deposits, Advances. Exposure and NPA's

Concentration of Advances:

Rs in lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 6,926.11
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total advances 2.87%
Concentration of Exposures:

Rs in lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20
Total Exposure to twenty largest barrowers / customers 6,926.11
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers / p of the applicable NBFC on borrower/Customers 2.87%
Concentration of NPAs

Rs in |lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 175.74
Sector- wise NPAs

Rs in lakhs

Percentage  of
NPAs to Total

s e Advances in that
Sector
1 |Agriculture & allied activities 6.74%
2 MSME =
3 Corporate Borrowers <
4 Services .
5 Unsecured personal Loans N
& Auto Loans "
7 Other personal loans -
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Movement of NPAs Rs In lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
] Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 4.65% 3.89%
(i} Movement of NPAs (Gross)
a) Opening balance 9,088.11 6,562.35
b) Additions during the year 11,318.62 6,406.53
c) Reductions during the year (4,778.34) (3,880.77)
d) Closing balance 15,628.39 9,088.11
(i) Movement of Net NPAs
a) Opening balance 6,590.97 4,7659.36
b) Additions during the year 7,802.00 4,642.72
c) Reductions during the year (3,448.73) (2,821.11)
d) Closing balance 11,044.24 6,590.97
(iv) M of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard Assets)
a) Opening balance 2,497.14 1,792.99
b) Provisions made during the Year 3,416.62 1,763.81
e) Write-off/ write-back of Excess provision {1,329.61) [1,055.65)
d) Closing balance 4,584.15 2,497.14
26.38 Overseas Assets (for those with Joint V and Subsid broad)
This section is Not applicable to the Company
26.39  pff-balance Sheet SPVs sp d
This section is Not applicable to the Company
26,40 Disclosures of Complaints:
G c laints
Sr.No Particulars 31-Mar-20
a) No. Of Complaints pending at the beginning of the year 5
b} No. of complaints received during the year 73
c) No, of complaints redressed during the year 75
d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 3
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2641 pisclosures as required in tarms of Annex | in accordance with Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016 updated as on 17th Feb 2020 issued by Reserve Bank
of India (RBI)
Liabilities side : Rsin lakhs
Amount A Overd
Particulars Qutstanding as at | as of 31" March
31 March 2020 2020
1 Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial ¢ inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
Debentures : Secured ¥ E
(a)
() (-
: Unsecured* 80,957.33 -
(80,936.74) (=)
{other than falling within the meaning of public deposits) - -]
() )
Deferred Credits r i
(B)
- -
@ Term Loans 61,153.63 -
<,
(54,744.95) (=)
« Inter-corporate loans and borrowing - (-}
)
(-} |
o) Commercial Paper** 30,000.00 -
e
] (5] ()
! (f) Public Deposits - a
Other Loans . 4
-ECB 12,827.66 E
(e) -
- Working capital loan 11,526.61
() ()
* Loan amount is excluding unamortised debt cost
** Commercial papers at gross value
2 Break-up of (1){f} above {Outstanding public deposits inclusive of interest accrued there on but not paid):
o In the form of Unsecured debentures ¥ %
a
8] (-)
In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there is a shortfall in the value of security - -
- (=}
Other public deposits . -
(e)
[ 0]
Naote: Figures in the brackets represents figures for previous year.
Rs in lakhs
| Assets side :
. Amount outstanding as at
Faculars 31 March 2020
3 Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables [other than those included in [4) below] :
‘ (a) Secured :
()

{b) Unsecured




John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

n Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :
{a) Financial lease z
()
(b) Operating lease 9
[]
(it} Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire *
()
(B} Repossessed Assets ( )
-
{iii} Other loans counting towards AFC
943.20
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(633.34)
237,952.76
(k) Loans other than (a) above
{169.?&0.96}]
5 Break-up of Investments:
Current Investments:
1) Quoted :
(i) |shares ¥
()
(a)  |Equity :
)
(b} Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
)
(i) Units of mutual 1
()
{iv) Government Securities
)
(v} Others {please specify) \
()
2) Unguoted :
() |shares :
(-}
fa)  |Equity )
i)
(b)  |Preference )
)
(ii) Debentures and Bonds N
)
i) Units of mutual funds A
]
(iv)  |Government Securities ( ]
(v) Others (please specify) ]
)
Long Term i
1) uoted :
i) |shares ]
)
@ |Equity ;
)
{b) Preference i
)
(i) Debentures and Bonds ( i
(iii) Units of mutual funds { ]
(iv) Government Securities ( ]
(v} Others |please specify) { :'
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5 | Break-up of Investments:
Long Term i
2) Unguoted :
(i) Shares 7
()
{a) Equity i
)
(b) Preference %
)
(i) Debentures and Bonds { ]
(i) Units of mutual funds ( ;
[Iv) Government Securities ( ;
(v} Others (please specify) : ;
6 Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above:
Rs in lakhs
Amount net of provisions
Category
Secured U i Total
1) Related Parties
{a}  |Subsidiaries 1 i .
) () {-)
(b) Companies in the same group i i i
(- (- ()
(e} Other related parties : ! 3
(-} () ()
238,895, - .
2) Other than related parties e 436,895,956
(170,414.30) ) {170,414.30)
_— 238,895.96 - 238,895.96
(170,414.30) -) (170,414.30)
Note: Figures in the brackets represents figures for previous year
7 Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and ities (both q d and ungquoted):
Rs in lakhs
t Value/B i
Category Market Value/Break up or fair value Book Value (Net of Pravisions)
or NAY
1) Related Parties
Subsidiaries = b
3l
o “ )
Companies in the same group - o
[14)] i) (-
(© Other related parties - %
) ()
Other than related parties b =
2)
) )
Total = =
=) -

Mote: Figures in the brackets represents figures for previous year
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8 Other information Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Amount
(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties i
()
15,628.39
(k) Other than related parties
(9,088.11)
(i) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties I
()
11,044.24
(b) Other than related parties
(6,590.97)
(i) |Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt k
(-

Note: Figures in the brackets represents figures for previous year

26.42 Liquidity risk framework as per Appendix | of DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated 4th November 2019
Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both depasits and borrowings)

U]

{iii)

(iw)

Rsin lakhs
% of Total % of Total
Sr. No. Number of Significant C partii A deposit: Liabilities
1 9 195,265.45 - 79.66%
*Borrowings exclude accured interest, unamartized debt issuance cost and tized di on C ial papers
Top 20 large deposits (amount in % Lakhs and % of total depasits) : Not Applicable
Top 10 borrowings (amount in % Lakhs and % of total borrowings)
Rs in lakhs
Amount % of Total
Borrowings
185,265.45 100.00%
Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product Rs in lakhs
Sr.no Name of the instrument/product Amount %ol Tu‘tal
Liabilities
1 Term Loan 73,765.45 30.10%
2 WCDL 11,500.00 4.69%
3 Non-convertible debentures 80,000.00 32.64%
4 Commercial papers 30,000.00 12.24%

Total

195,265.45
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r [v)  Stock Ratios:
Commercial papers as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets

Rs in lakhs
Sr.no Name of the instrument/product Amount % of Total % of Total % of Total % of Total Assets
Public Funds | Liabilities Liabilities
(excluding Eq. and
Reserve)}
1 Commercial papers {Gross of unamortised discount) 30,000.00 15.36% 1124%F 15.20% 12.24%
Nen-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets
Rs in lakhs
Sr.no Name of the instrument/product Amount % of Total % of Total % of Total % of Total Assets
Public Funds  |Liabilities Liabilities
(excluding Eq. and
Reserve)
1 Nen-convertible debentures - - = 5 2
Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of total public funds, total liabilities and total assets
Rs in lakhs
Sr.no Name of the instrument/product Amount % of Total % of Total % of Total % of Total Assets
Public Funds  |Liabilities Liabilities
(excluding Eq. and
Reserve)
1 WCDL 11,500.00 5.89% 4.69% 5.83% 4.69%
2 Non-convertible det becoming due within next 1 year 30,000.00 15.36% 12.24% 15.20% 12.24%
3 Term Loans-becoming due within next 1 year 14,500.00 71.63% 6.08% 7.56% 6.08%
26.43 Template for Disclosure in Notes to Financial Statements with reference to circular no.RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020
Rs in lakhs
.n\lsseff i Gross Earnying L:ss al!:wa:lnces - - » E)n‘ferencle -~
Asset Classification as per RBI Norms FassIneayen Amount as per { rm_rl5| i ereang L heis ; !
as per Ind AS Ind AS required under  |Amount as per IRACP norms | 109 provisions
109 Ind AS 109 and IRACP norms
(1) (2 (3) {4) {5)=(3)-(4) (6) (7)=(4)- (&)
Performing Assets
Stage 1 209,045.76 91062 208,139.14 836.20 74.42
Standard
Stage 2 15,852.31 355.71 16,496.60 67.41 2B8.30
Sub-total 225,902,07 1,266.33 224,635.74 903,61 36272
Non-Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3 13,531.51 3,873.60 9,657.91 1,353.15 2,520.45
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 1,317.59 447.04 870.55 263.52 183.52
1to 3 years Stage 3 T79.29 263,51 515.78 233.79 29.72
Mare than 3 years Stage 3 = & . & B
Subtotal for doubtful 2,096.88 710.55 1,386.33 497.31 213.24
Loss Stage 3 -
Subtotal for NPA 15,628.39 4,584.15 11,044.24 1,850.46 2,733.69
Stage 1 * - - - &
Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments, etc. which are in the scope of Ind AS|
109 but not covered under current Income Recognition, Asset Classification and|Stage 2 - - - - -
Provisioning (IRACP) norms
Stage 3 - * s = .
Subtotal = . . , :
Stage 1 208,045.76 910.62 208,139.14 B836.20 74.42
— Stage 2 16,852.31 35571 16,496.60 6741 2B8.30
otal
Stage 3 15,628.39 4,584,15 11,044.24 1,850.46 2,733.69
Total 241,530.46 5,850.48 235,679.98 2,754.07 3,096.41




John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements

26.44 Disclosure in Notes to Financial Statements with reference to Para 10 of circular no.RBI/2019-20/220 DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dated 17 April 2020

Amounts in overdue categories, where the moratorium/deferment was extended:

(A) Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Amounts
Installment amount for which meratorium is extended 5,953.38
Outstanding Loan 31,964.22
Respective amount where asset classification benefits is extended : Rs in Lakhs
(8)
Particulars :l:nn:r:::f Outstanding Loan
] Classification benefit extended 195 667.37
I Provisicns made during the Q4FY2020 in terms of paragraph 5 of circular Rs in Lakhs
(€ |Particulars Amount
i Provision held for Substandard assets 487.57|
{
[ Provisions adjusted during the respective accounting periods against slippages and the residual provisions in terms of paragraph 6 of circular : Rs in Lakhs
(0)  |Particulars Amount
Provision Adjusted during the accounting period NIL|

26.45 In accordance with the REI notification No. DNBS.PD.CC. Ne. 256/03.10.042/2011-12 dated March 2, 2012, No fraud was detected and reported during the financial year ended 31 March 2020 {31
March 2019 -Nil)

26.46 The Company has established a system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under Section 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961, The Company is in
the process of updating the documentation for the financial year 2019-20. The management is of the opinion that its international transactions are at arm's length and accordingly the aforesaid
legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expenses and that of provision for taxation,

In terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For B 5 R & Associates LLP John Deere Financial India Private Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN: U65923PN2011PTC141149
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